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Independent Auditors Repart

To the Members of Aequs Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aequs Private Limited (hereinafter referred to
as the “Holding Company”) its Aequs Stock Option Plan Trust, and its subsidiaries (Holding Company, its
Aequs Stock Option Plan Trust and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its joint ventures,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended 31 March 2024, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its joint ventures as at 31
March 2024, of its consolidated loss and other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its joint ventures in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 9(i) to the consolidated financial statements in relation to a guarantee
issued by the Holding Company’s subsidiary and certain payments made by the Holding Company’s
subsidiary under such guarantees on behalf of a foreign subsidiary in respect of which the Holding
Company's subsidiary is in discussions with the Authorised Dealer to evaluate the compliance
requirements under Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and regulations thereunder (FEMA
Regulations), if any. Pending such evaluation, no adjustments have been made to the financial
statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management's and Board of Directors'/Board of Trustees’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Aequs Private Limited

a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management
and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group , of its joint ventures are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group , of its joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of each
company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group , and of its joint ventures are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its joint ventures to cease to continue as a going
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Aequs Private Limited

concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements/financial information
of such entities or business activities within the Group and its joint ventures to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements/financial information of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are
further described in paragraph (b)&(c) of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

a. The consolidated financial statements of the Group, its associate and joint ventures for the year ended
31 March 2023 were audited by the predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion
on 23 September 2023.

b. We did not audit the financial statements of 7 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 3,186 millions as at 31 March 2024, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 941 millions and net cash outflows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs. 6 millions for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to to the financial
statements certified by the Management.
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c. The financial information of 5 subsidiaries incorporated outside India and 1 subsidiary incorporated in
India, whose financial information reflects total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 3,277
millions as at 31 march 2024, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. Nil and net
cash outflows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs. 68 millions for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, have not been audited either by us
or by other auditors. This unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely
on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, this financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to the financial information
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “"Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and joint venture companies,
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and joint venture companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f  the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
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auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, joint ventures as noted in the “Other
Matters” paragraph:

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2024 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2024.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2024.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, joint venture

(ii)

companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies respectively that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 47(vi)(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the by the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiary companies and joint venture companies to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies and joint venture companies
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, joint venture
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies respectively that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 47(vi)(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary companies and joint venture companies from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary companies and joint venture companies shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the auditors of
subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act,

- the Holding Company, 4 subsidiary companies and 2 joint venture companies, have used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, however, the feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility has not been enabled. Consequently, we are unable to comment on audit
trail feature of the said software.

- 5 subsidiaries companies have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of their
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Aequs Private Limited
audit, the other auditors did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered

with.

- 1 subsidiary company has not maintained books of account in electronic mode. Accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’'s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited
by us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India since none of these
companies is a public company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR &Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

/j@,_fﬁ; é/"‘“@“/\”/

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 04 October 2024 ICAl UDIN:24060573BKFGQC5489
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Aequs Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have
unfavourable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in their

reports under the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Sr. No. Name of the CIN Holding Clause
entities Company/Sub | number of the
sidiary/ JV/ CARO report
Associate which is
unfavourable
or qualified or
adverse
1 Aequs Private UB0302KA2000 Holding (i) (b), iii ( ), ii
Limited PTC026760 Company (d), iii (), (xiv)
(a) and (xvii)
2 AeroStructures | U29253KA2013 Subsidiary (i) (b), iii ( c), iii
Manufacturing PTC067763 (d), iii (f) and
India Private (xiv) (a)
Limited
3 Aequs U22209KA2015 Subsidiary (ii) (b), (xiv) (a),
Engineered PTCQO78777 and (xvii)
Plastics Private
Limited
4 Aequs Force U28191KA2018 Subsidiary (i) (b), iii ( c), i
Consumer PTC114901 H, (xiv) (a) and
Products {xvii)
Private Limited
5 Aequs U28995KA2019 Subsidiary (i) (b), (xiv) (a)
Consumer PTC129087 and (xvii)
Products
Private Limited
6 SQUuAD Forging | U28910KA2011 Joint Venture (ii) (b)
India Private PTC056681
Limited
7 Aequs Toys U26400KA2021 Subsidiary vii(a) and xvii
Private Limited PTC150503
8 Koppal Toys U36999KA2021 Subsidiary xvil
Molding COE PTC150753
Private Limited
9 Aerostructures U29253KA2013 Subsidiary (ii) (b)
Assemblies PTC067804
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Aequs Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024 (Continued)

Sr. No. Name of the CIN Holding Clause
entities Company/Sub | number of the
sidiary/ JV/ CARO report
Associate which is
unfavourable
or qualified or
adverse
India Private
Limited
10 Aequs Home U31904KA2021 Subsidiary vii(a) and xvii
Appliances PTC150511
Private Limited

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination, in
respect of the following subsidiary companies incorporated in India and included in the
consolidated financial statements, the CARO report relating to them has not been issued by
their respective auditors till the date of this principal auditors’ report.

Name of the entities CIN Holding
Company/Subsidiary/
JVI Associate
Koppal Toys Tooling COE | U36990KA2021PTC151211 Subsidiary
Private Limited

Place: Chennai

Date: 04 October 2024

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner

Membership No.: 060573
ICAI UDIN:24060573BKFGQC5489
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Aequs Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Aequs Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company such companies
incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion, the and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, have,
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and
such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies
considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsibie for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
- our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Aequs Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

U,u.)u\! GM,@\.&NF’#

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 04 October 2024 [CAI UDIN:24060573BKFGQC5489
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Aequs Private Limited
Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR Millions. except share data. unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U80302KA2000PTC026760

Particulars Notes As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,749 1,815
Right of use assets 5 4,113 4,169
Capital work in progress 4A 1,754 16
Investment property 4B - 64
Goodwill 6 655 655
Other intangible assets 6 85 134
Intangible assets under development 6A 0 4
Investments accounted for using equity method 1/ 622 575
Financial assets
Investments 8(i) 1 1
Loans 9 (i) - =
Other financial assets 9 (v) 395 337
Other non-current assets 10 159 79
Deferred tax assets 11 324 309
Current tax assets 1A 14 27
Total non-current assets 9,871 8,185
Current assets
[nventories 12 3,541 2,985
Financial assets
Investments 8(ii) 297 -
Trade receivables 9 (ii) 1,369 1,071
Cash and cash equivalents 9 (iii) 793 513
Bank balances other than above 9 (iv) 1,727 61
Loans 9 (i) - =
Other financial assets 9 (v) 15 33
Contract assets 13 25 1
Other current assets 10 588 318
Assets classified as held for sale 4 50
Total current assets 8,359 5,032
Total assets 18,230 13,217
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 4,248 4,248
Instruments entirely equity in nature 14A 4,071 -
Other equity 15 (154) (1,462)
Equity attributable to owners of Aequs Private Limited 8,165 2,786
Non controlling interests 15 9) (113)
Total equity 8.156 2,673
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Aequs Private Limited CIN: U80302KA2000PTC026760

Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Millions. except share data. unless otherwise stated)

Liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 (i) 855 1,253
Lease liabilities 16 (ii) 3,507 3,378
Other financial liabilities 16 (iii) 6 i
Employee benefit obligations 18 127 110
Other non-current liabilities 17 - 29
Total non current liabilities 4,495 4,717
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 (i) 2,064 2,208
Lease liabilities 16 (i) 564 520
Trade payables
a. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 16 (iv) 10 2
b. Total outstanding dues other than (a) above 16 (iv) 2,015 2,256
Other financial liabilities 16 (iii) 496 265
Employee benefit obligations 18 55 45
Other current liabilities 17 192 295
Current tax liabilities 17(1) 61 -
Contract liabilities 13 122 165
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 0 11
Total current liabilities 5,579 5,767
Total liabilities 10,074 10,544
Total equity and liabilities 18,230 13.217
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
This is the consolidated balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.
ForBSR& CoLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022 l/
/ = \
G W : o JANEET
V a4 ‘
— /
Sampad Guha Thakurta Rajeev Kaul Ajay Prabhu
Partner Managing Director & Chief Operating Officer (COO) Director

DIN-00477195

Place: Faro, Portugal
Date: Qctober 04, 2024
Address: 67. Purva Parkridge.

Garudacharpalya, Mahadevapura.
Bengaluru - 560048, Karnataka,

DIN-01468590

Place: Belagavi

Date: October 04, 2024
Address: 9, Parjat Lane, Mango Meadows
Udyambag. Khanapur Road. Belagavi -
590008, Karnataka, india

Membership No.: 060573
Place: Chennai
Date: October 04, 2024

India
‘k’-’,!
Ravi Hugar

Dinesh Iyer
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Belagavi

Date: October 04, 2024
Address: B-304, Adarsh Palm Retreat,
Tower 2. Devara Beesana Halli,
Bengaluru. 560103, Karnataka

Company Sccretary
M. No. - A20823
Place: Belagavi

Date: October 04, 2024
Address: Plot No. 17. Shruti Park.

Scholar Academy School. Behind
Litile, Belgaum, Karnataka - 590016



Aequs Private Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in INR Millions. except share data, unless otherwise stated)

CIN: UB0302KA2000PTC026760

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(Restated™)
Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 19 9,651 8,121
Other income 20 232 284
Total income (A) 9,883 8,405
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 4,391 4,169
Purchase of traded goods 22 - 21
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods 23 (225) (349)
Employee benefit expense 24 1,434 1.446
Impairment losses on financial assets 25 15 9
Other expenses 26 2,812 2.479
Total expenses (B) 8,427 7,775
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (A-B) 1,456 630
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 1,077 995
Finance costs 28 638 646
Loss before exceptional items, share in loss of associate and joint ventures, and tax (259) (1.011)
Share of net profit/(loss) of associate and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method,
net of tax 52 9
Exceptional gain / (loss) 29 186 (7N
Loss before tax from continuing operations (21) (1,027)
Tax expense
- Current tax 30 115 12
- Deferred tax 11 (15) 48
Total tax expense 100 60
Loss from continuing operations (121) (1.087)
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations before tax (21) (8)
Loss from discontinued operations 21 (8)
Loss for the year (142) (1,095)
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchange difference on translation of foreign operation 15 42) (66)
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 3 13
- Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures and associate accounted for
using equity method - n
- Income tax relating to these items . 2)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (39) (56)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (181) (1,151)
Loss attributable to:
Owners of Aequs Private Limited (108) (988)
Non controlling interests (34) (107)
(142) (1.095)
omprehensive loss attributable to:
_Awqus Private Limited (40) (52)
-{.Lw ling interests (0) (4)
. i
o) (40) (56)

Continued...



Aequs Private Limited CIN: UB0302KA2000PTC026760
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR Millions, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated*)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
Owners of Aequs Private Limited (147) (1.040)
Non controlling interests (34) (L11)
(181) (1,151)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of Aequs Private Limited arising from:
Continuing operation (160) (1,143)
Discontinued operations 2n (8)
(181) (1.151)
Earnings per equity share for profit from continuing operation attributable to owners of Aequs 37 (0.16) (2.68)
Private Limited
(Basic and Diluted - in INR.) (Nominal value per share: % 10)
Earnings per equity share for profit from discontinuing operation attributable to owners of Aequs 37 (0.04) (0.00)
Private Limited
(Basic and Diluted - in INR.)
Eamings per equity share for profit from discontinuing & continuing operation attributable to 37 (0.20) (2.42)

owners of Aequs Private Limited (Basic and Diluted - in INR.)

*Refer Note 20 for details of restatement.

Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
This is the consolidated statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For BSR & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022
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Aequs Private Limited CIN: U80302KA2000PTC026760
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in INR Millians, except share data._unless otherw ise stated)

Year ended Year ended March
March 31, 2024 31,2023
Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before tax from continuing operations 2N (1,027)
Profit / (loss) before tax from discontinuing operations (21) (8)
Profit / (loss) before tax (42) (1,035)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,081 995
Employee stock compensation expense 21 24
(Profit) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment / investment property (net) (186) 5
Interest income from financial asset at amortised cost (82) (13)
Gain on mutual funds 4) -
Liabilities no longer required written back 30) (58)
Loss allowance on trade receivables 15 9
Provision for slow moving inventory - 32
Finance cost 637 479
Finance guarantee income (6) (10)
Unwinding of discount on security deposits n (20)
Finance guarantee expense - 20
Unrealised exchange (gain) or loss 3BhH 95
Share of (gain)/loss from associate and joint ventures ' (52) 9
Impairment loss on loans and receivable from related parties
Dividend Income - (12)
(Gain) / loss on derecognition of right-of-use assets - (19)
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) / decrease in
- trade receivables (309) (6)
- inventories (556) (870)
- other financial assets 23 (65)
- non current assets 3) (15)
- other current assets (208) (26)
- Contract assets (20) 8
Increase / (decrease) in
- trade payables (194) 491
- employee benefit obligations 29 16
- other non-current liabilities 29) 29
- other financial liabilities 2 22
- other liabilities (101 (108)
- contract liabilities (43) 123
Cash generated from / (used in) operations (151) 107
Income taxes {paid) / refund received (41) (9
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) (192) 98
Cash flow from investing activities:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,818) (850)
Proceeds from sale of investment property 262 -
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale, net - 45)
Loans given to related parties - n
Repayment of loans given to related parties - 60
Investments in associate and joint ventures - (72)
Investment in mutual funds (294) -
Investment in bank deposits (1,663)
[nterest received 79 13
Dividend income received - 12
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B) (3.434) (889)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equitty shares -
Proceeds from issue of compulsorily convertible 5.219 641
Proceeds from issue of compulsorily convertible - 839
Share issue expenses (115) (68)
Proceeds from long term borrowing 904 258
Repayment of Long term borrowing (797) (283)
Proceeds from related party borrowing 76
Principal payment of lease liabilities (468) (362)
Acquisition of non controlling interests (100) -
Proceeds from /(repayment of) short term (155) (32)
Interest paid (628) (449)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C) 3930 o 544
Wal Continued...
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Aequs Private Limited CIN: U80302KA2000PTC026760
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Millions, except share data. unless otherwise stated)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 310 (247)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 513 826
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 12
Foreign currency translation difference (42)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 793 513
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following: [refer note 9 (iii)]
Balances with banks
- current accounts 291 362
- deposits with maturity of three months or less 502
Cash on hand 0
793 513

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ind AS financial staternents.
This is the consolidated statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

ForBSR & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: IOI248W/W-]00(y

'»TAQW?'

Sampad Guha Thakurta
Partner
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Director
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Place: Faro, Portugal
Date: October 04, 2024
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Company Secretary
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Place: Belagavi

Date: October 04, 2024
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Aequs Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements CIN: UB0302KA2000PTC026760

(All amovnts are in INR Millionys, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

1. Background:

Aequs Private Limited (‘the Parent Company’) was incorporated on March 27. 2000 under provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and is located at Special Economic Zone ("SEZ")
Belagavi. Kamataka, India. It has its registered office at Whitefield, Bengaluru. The Parent Company. along with its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “the Group™). is engaged in the business of contract manufacturing catering to various industries. These units are registered to carry on the operations relating to
manufacture of machined parts used in aerospace, engineered plastic products and kitchen and home appliances

2. Material accounting policies:
This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopled in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements, These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented. unless otherwise stated

a. Basis of preparation and presentation
These Consolidated Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {IndAS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities, which have been
measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

+ Cerain financial assets and liabilities are measured al fair value:

= Share-based payments

+ Defined employee benefit plans; and

»  Assets held for sale measured at lower of cost and fair value less cost to sell

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 11 (Division I} to the Act.
Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of asset for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current / non- current classifi cation of assets and liabilities

Presentation currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are presented in Indian Rupees (INR / ), which is the functional currency of the Parent Company and the presentation currency for
the consolidated financial statements. All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded to nearest millions (Mn) as per the requirement of
Schedule 11l of Companies Act. 2013, unless otherwise stated. Amounts mentioned as "0" in the financial statements denote amounts rounded off being less than T 0.5 Mn.

Accounting policy on EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on Division II -Ind AS Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013, the Group has elected to present eamings before interest. tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Group measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations, In
its measurement, the Group does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and income tax expense

Recent pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated March 31. 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the "Rules™) which amends
certain accounting standards, and were effective April I, 2023, The Rules predominantly amended Ind AS 12. Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The
other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications, These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods

b. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and entities controlled by the Parent Company i.e.. its subsidiaries. It also includes
the Group's share of profits/(loss), net assets and retained post acquisition reserves of joint ventures and associates that are consolidated using the equity method of consolidation

Control is achieved when the Company is exposed to or has rights to the variable returns of the entity and the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant
activities of the entity.

The results of subsidiaries. joint ventures and associates acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal. as appropriate.

Wherever necessary. adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries. joint ventures and associates to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other
entities of the Group.

(1) Subsidiaries:

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group “controls™ an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to. variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those retums through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which
control commences until the date on which control ceases.

ltems of assets. liabilities. equity. income. expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries are combined like to like basis. For this purpose. income and expenses of
the subsidiary are based on the amounis of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date,

(ii) Non-controlling interests (NCI)

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity The interest of non-controlling shareholders may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying value of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interests” share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if it results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance

¢. Business combination
A common control business combination. involving eutities or businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the business combination and where the control is not transitory, is accounted for using the pooling of interest method in accordance with Ind AS 103 'Business
Combinations. Other business combinations, involving entities or businesses are accounted for using acquisition method. Consideralion transferred in such business combinations is
measured at fair value. which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group. liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange of control of the acquiree. Goodwill is recognised and is measured as the excess of the sum of the (i) consideration
transferred, (ii) the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. and (iii) the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equily interest in the acquiree. over the net of the
consideration date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve




Acqus Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements CIN: US0302KA2000PTC026760
(Al amounts are in INR Millions. except share data. unless othervise stated)

d. Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units or Groups of cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit’s value may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying value of the unit. the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying value of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit in proportion to the carying value of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. On disposal of a
subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of profit or loss on disposal. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or chanees in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired.

e. Investment in associates

Associates are those enterprises over which the Group has significant influence but does not have control or joint control. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method and are initially recognised at cost from the date significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. Subsequent changes in the carrying value reflect
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate and impairment charges, if any When the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carmying value of the
associate, the carrying value is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued, except to the extent that the Group has incurred obligations in respect of the associate
Unrealised pains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminaled to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates, unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred and where material, the results of associates are modified to conform to the Group’s accounting policies,

f. Investment in joint ventures
A joint arrangement is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other partics undertake an economic activity where the strategic financial and operating policy decisions
relating to the activities of the joint arangement require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control

Joint arrangements that involve the establishment of a separale entity in which each co venturer has an interest are referred to as joint ventures. The Group reports its interests in joint
ventures using the equity method of accounting whereby an interest in joint venture is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of nel assels of the joint venture, The consolidated statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carmying value of the joint venture, the carrying value is reduced to nil and recognilion of further losses is discontinued, except (o the
extent that the Group has incurred obligations in respect of the joint venture. Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the joint venture, unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred and where material. the
results of joint ventures are modified to confirm to the Group’s accounting policies

g. Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM).

The Group's CODM is identified to be the Director of the Parent Company. who plans the allocation of resources and assess the performance of the segments. The Group has two
reportable segments 'Aerospace’ and 'Consumer' to be reported in its financial statements,

h. Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statemnents, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of’
the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated

For the purpose of presenting the Consolidated Financial Statements, the assets and liabilities of the Parent Company’s foreign subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures are expressed
in using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising.
if any. are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity. On the disposal of a foreign operations. all of the accumulated exchange
differences in respect of that operations attributable to the Company are reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit and loss,

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on (he acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and translated at the closing rate.

i. Revenue recognition

The Group eams its revenue from sale of manufactured goods and rendering of services. The Group has determined that it is a principal in all its arrangements with its customers,

The Group recognises revenue when control of goods has transferred to customers and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the customer's acceptance of the products.
Control of goods is considered to be transferred at a point-in-time when goods have been despatched or delivered. as per the terms agreed with the customer as that is when the legal
title. physical possession and risks and rewards of goods transfers to the customers

Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which services are rendered.

The Group does not have any contracts where the period between the transfer of goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. Accordingly. the
Group does nol adjust any of the transaction prices for time value of money

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. As a
practical expedient. the Group has opted not to disclose the information in respect of performance obligations that are part of contracts that has an original expected duration of one year
or less.

A contract asset is recognised when the Parent Company gets the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that it has transferred to the customers and the right is
conditional upon acts other than passage of time.

When the payment exceeds the value of goods supplied or services rendered. a contract liability (advance from customers) is recognised.

j- Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised al their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all the attached
conditions. Govermnment grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit and loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate and presented within other income

k. Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate applicable adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the parent company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in lax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on Lhe most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor laxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting

period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
By i
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Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

I. Leases

As a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right of use assel and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include Lhe net present value of the followiny lease payments:
Fixed payments (including in-subslance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable
Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date
Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees
The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option.
Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that oplion

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extensions options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If the rale cannot be readily determined. as in the case of lease of buildings. the Group's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the Group would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain the asset of similar value to the right of use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions

Lease payments are allocated belween principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right of use assets are measured al cost comprising of the following:

The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

Any lease payments made on or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

Any initial direct cost

Restoration cost
Right of use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight line basis. Where the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
purchase option. the right of use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.
Payment associated with short-term lease of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short term leases are
leases with a lease term of |2 months or less

m. Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date. the Group reviews the carrying value of its property. plant and equipment. intangible assets and right of use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists. the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to
determine the extent of impairment loss. if any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessiments of Lhe time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimales of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount

Where an impairmient loss subsequently reverses. the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unil) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss immediatety

n. Cash and cash equivaients

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions. other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject Lo an insignificant risk of chanpes in
value, and bank overdrafts.

o. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects group’s unconditional right to consideration (that
is. payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The group
holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently al amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less loss allowance

p. Inventories
Inventories include raw materials (including stores. spares and packing material), work in progress and finished goods. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value, Cost of raw materials comprise of cost of purchases. freight and other expenses incurred in bringing the raw materials to the manufacturing location, excluding rebates and

Cost of work in progress and finished goods comprises direct materials. direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on
the basis of normal operating capacity.

Costs are assigned (o individual items on weighted average cost basis which is calculated on the basis of total cost of raw materials divided by the quantities purchased. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

q. Investments and other (inancial assets

Clasvification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

« those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss). and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
For assets measured at fair value. gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments (not held for trading
purpose), (his will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of inilial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date. the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sale the financial assets

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset (other than trade receivables) at its fair value plus. in the case ol a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assel. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

(a) Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and ig
cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method (refer note 32 for asset details)
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(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI. except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses. interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial assel is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses), Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other expenses and impairment expenses in other expenses.

Impairment of financial asset

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 33 details how the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, the
Group applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses (o be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

. The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Group
has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in
the financial asset.

Income recognition

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is disclosed as interest income within finance income. Interest income from financial assets at amortized cost is
calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss using the effective interest rate method

r. Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost or deemed cost applied on transition to Ind AS less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items, net of refundable taxes. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate.
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in statement of profit and loss within other income/(expenses). When significant
spare parts of an item of property. plant and equipment have different useful lives. they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property. plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values. over their estimated useful lives or. in case of certain leased machineries. the
shorter lease term as follows:

The estimated useful lives of assets are as [ollows:

Assel Uselul fife (in vears)
10 or lease period.
wh

Leasehold improvements

:hever is lower

Plant and machinery 1.51010
Computers 3t 6
Furniiure and fittings 1.5t05
Vehicles 10
Office and other equipment 1.5t05

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management which are higher than those specified by Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, in order
to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate. at the end of each reporting period. Assets in the course of development or construction are not
depreciated.

s. Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the group. is classified as investment property. Investment property is
measured initially at its cost. including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowiny costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Investment properties are depreciated
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Investment property (building) is depreciated over.the estimated remaining useful life of 7 years. The useful life has been
determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.

t. Intangible assets
Intangible assets include Computer sofiware and Technical knowhow. Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred. Technical
knowhow comprises of capitalized product developed costs, being an internally generated intangible asset

The Parent Company amortizes intangible assets with finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Uselul lile (in vears)
Computer software 2 - 10 years
Technical knowhow 5 years

u. Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured al amortized cost using the effective interest method
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v. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case. the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there
is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the
reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current. if the lender agreed. after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue. nol to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach

w. Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the assel for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assels are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization, Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred

x. Employece benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries. including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employees ' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured al the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.

Leave obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet since the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity, pension obligations (France): and
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund and ESI

Gratuity obligations:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur. directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet

Pension obligations (France):

The French pension system is operated on a “pay as you go” basis. Each employee is entitled to receive a basic pension from the Social Security plus a complementary pension from
defined contribution schemes ARRCO and AGIRC (solely for management for AGIRC). Moreover. retiring allowances (lump sums) must by law be paid by the employer when
employees retire. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using appropriate criteria applicable in France

Defined contribution plans (India):

The Group pays provident fund contributions to Employees "Provident Fund Organization and ESI contributions to Employees' State Insurance Corporation as per local regulations. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available

Defined contribution pluns (United States of America):

Eligible employees of the Group in the United States participate in an employee retirement savings plan (the “401K Plan™) under section 401 (K) of the United States Internal Revenue
Code. The 401K plan allows for the employees to defer a portion of their annual earings on a pre-tax basis through voluntary contributions to the 401K plan. The Group’s contribution
to the plan is discretionary and no contribution has been made on this account during the current and previous reporting periods.

Share-based payments
Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees through the Aequs Stock Option Plan. The fair value of options granted under the Aequs Private Limited Employee Stock
Option Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:
- including any market performance conditions (e.y.. the entity's share price). and
- including the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions, It recognizes the impact of the revision to original
estimates. if any. in profit or loss. with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

y. Financial guarantec contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the
(i) amount determined in accordance with the expected credit loss model as per Ind AS 109 and the amount initially recognised less. where appropriate. cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS [15. The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the
contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee. or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligation.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation. the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the
cost of the investments .

2. Contributed equity
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction. net of tax. from securities premium.
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aa. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal proups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying value will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is only met when the sale is highly
probable and the asset, or disposal group, is available for immediate sale in its present condition and is marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation o its current fair value
The Parent Company must also be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. Where
a disposal group represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations. then it is treated as a discontinued operations. The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operations together with the gain or loss recognised on its
disposal are disclosed as a single amount in the statement of profit and loss, with all prior periods being presented on this basis.

ab. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

« the profit attributable to owners of the Group

« by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take into account:

« the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

ac. Provisions and onerous contracts

Provisions are recognised when the Parent Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an expense

A provision for onerous contract is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Parent Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before a provision is established. the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associate with the contract

3. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and related disclosures of contingent liabilities in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are used for, but not limited to useful lives of property. plant and
equipment, accounting for right-of-use assets. impairment of goodwill and investments in associate and joint ventures, and estimation of and recoverability of deferred tax balances.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Aequs Private Limited CIN: U80302KA2000PTC026760

Notes to consolidated linancial statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions. except share data. unless otherwise stated)

Note 7 - Investments accounted for under equity method

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Investment in equity instruments of associate, unquoted, fully paid-up
- 0

- Aequs Foundation
Investment in equity instruments of joint ventures, unquoted, fully paid-up

- Aerospace Processing India Private Limited 178 139
- SQuUAD Forging India Private Limited 444 436
Total 622 575
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - -
622 575

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

Notes:
i. Investment in Acrospace Processing India Private Limited includes Z 11 (March 31, 2023: %5) towards fair value of financial guarantee extended.

ii. Investment in SQUAD Forging India Private Limited includes 53 (March 31, 2023: 52) towards fair value of [inancial guarantee extended.

iii. Investment in the following entities includes cost of shared based compensation cost :
SQuAD Forging India Private Limited

Aerospace Processing India Private Limited 0) 0

iv. Investment in the following entilies includes share of profit/ (loss) of joint ventures accounted under the equity method:
SQuAD Forging India Private Limited 18 (18)
Aerospace Processing India Private Limited 3

Note 8(i) - Non-current investments

Unquoted
[nvestment in government securities | |
1 1

Total

Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

Note 8(ii) - Current investments

Unquoted
Investment in equity instruments (Fully paid up)
0

- Aequs Foundation
200 (March 31, 2023: 1,000) equity shares ot'% 10 each fully paid-up.
Less: Impairment in the value of investment

Note:
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Parent Company sold 800 equity shares of Aequs Foundation. Additionally, subsequent to the year end, the

remaining holding has also been sold. The carrying value of the investment has been impaired basis its net asset value as at March 31, 2024.

Quoted

Investment in mutual funds

Investment in mutual funds 297 -

Total 297 -
297

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 0

Note 9 (i) - Loans

Non current (unsecured, considered
Loans to related party - 6
(6)

Less: Loss allowance -

The Holding Company's subsidiary had issued a guarantee to a Bank in India to enable Aequs Aerospace BV, a foreign associate of the Company, to drawdown
loans in earlier years. In respect of the loan availed in 2016, certain installments amounting to ¥ 119 was directly paid by the Subsidiary to the bank over a
period of five years to meet its ongoing repayment obligations. The subsidiary is in discussions with its Authorised Dealer to evaluate the compliance
requirements under Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and regulations thereunder (FEMA Regulations) in respect of these transactions, if any. Pending
such evaluation, there is uncertainty whether penalty may be levied under the FEMA Regulations and accordingly, no adjustments have been made to these

financial statements
Note 9 (ii) - Trade receivables (unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables from other than related parties 1.388 1.071

Receivables from related parties (refer note 39) 7/ 41

Less: Loss allowance (26) (41)
1.369 1.071

Total receivables




Aequs Private Limited CIN: U80302KA2000PTC026760
Notes to consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, except share data. unless othervise stated)

Ageing as on March 31, 2024

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due | Less than 6 | 6 months-| 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years
months 1 vear

Undisputed trade receivables

Considered good 1.185 121 Il 38 13 1 1,369

Which have significant increase in credit risk - 2 2 20 2 - 26

Sub-total 1,185 123 13 58 15 1 1,395

Less Loss allowance - (2) (2) (20) 2) - (26)

Total trade receivables 1.185 121 11 38 13 1 1,369

Ageing as on March 31, 2023

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date
Not due | Less than 6 | 6 months-| 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
months 1 vear

Undisputed trade receivables

Considered good 882 159 28 ! 1 0 1,071

Which have significant increase in credit risk 2 2 13 18 6 0 41

Sub-total 884 161 41 19 i 0 1,112

Less Loss allowance (2) (2) (13) (18) (6) (0) 41)

Total trade receivables 882 159 28 1 1 0 1,071

Note:
Refer note 41 for information on lien/charge against trade receivables.

Note 9 (iii) - Cash and cash equivalents March Jl_l;‘s];j March 3|‘/;|S}3a;
Cash on hand 0 0
Balances with banks:

- [n current accounts 291 362
- Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 502 5
Total 793 513

Note 9 (iv) - Bank balances other than above
Margin money deposits 3 53
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 1,689 8
Total 1.727 61
Note:
a. Margin money deposits are against letter of credit issued in favour of domestic and foreign vendors

Note 9 (v) - Other financial assets (unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified) ey Asat

’ ’ March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023

Non current
Deposits with banks - 2
Security deposits 395 335
Total 395 337
Current
Recoverable from related parties 32 51
MEIS receivable - 14
Security deposits 0 -
Other financial assets 12 9
Less: Expected credit loss (29) (41)
Total 15 33

Note 10 - Other assets
Non current
Capital advances 128 51
Prepaid expenses 42 28
Balance with statutory authorities 0 1
Provision for doubtful advances with (11 AN
Total 159 79
Current
Advance to suppliers 105 59
Advances to employees 4 4
Prepaid expenses 75 72
Unamortized financial guarantee expense 63 3
Balance with statutory authorities 341 181
Provision for doubtful balances (0) (1)

Total 588 318
Note 11 - Deferred tax assets

MAT credit entitlement 95 95

Other deferred tax assets (net) 229 214

Total 324 309
Note 11A - Income tax assets

Income tax assels 14 27

Total 14 27




Aequs Private Limited CIN: UB0302KA2000PTC026760

Notes to consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions. except share data. unless othervise stated)

. i As at As at
Note 12 - Inventories March 31,2024 March 31. 2023
Raw materials 1,684 1,392
[Goods in transit: Z 230 (March 31, 2023: %
142)]
Work-in-progress 1,140 920
Finished goods 857 842
Stores and spares 151 135
[Goods in transit: Z 10 (March 31, 2023:
)1
Less: Provision for slow moving inventory
(291) (304)
Total 3.541 2,985

Note:
a. For lien/charge against inventories refer note 41
b. Write-down of inventories to net realizable value amounted to 2 103 (March 31, 2023: % 127). These were recognized as an expense during the year and

included in 'changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods' in the statement of profit and loss.

¢. Provision for slow moving inventory includes provision in respect of:

Raw materials (170) (135)
Finished goods (41) (58)
Work-in-progress (41) (62)
Stores and spares (39 (49)
(291) (304)
Note 13 - Contract assets and contract
liabilities
Current
Contract assets 25 |
Total 25 1
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 80 161
Uneamed revenue 42 4
Total 122 165
Note:
Revenue recognised that was included in unearned revenue balance as at the beginning of the period:
4 42

- Sale of goods
(This space is intentionally lefi blank)




Aequs Private Limited CIN: URO302KA2000PTC026760
Notes to consolidated financial statements

(Al amotants are in INR Millions, except share data, unless othenvie stisteds

Note 14 - Equity share capital

(i) Authorised equity share capital No of shares Amount
As at April 01, 2022 431,460,000 4315
Increase during the year -

As at March 31, 2023 431,460,000 4,315
increase during the year B =
As at March 31, 2024 431,460,000 4.315
(ii) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital March 31’;;;‘: March 31’2;;;
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital 4,248 4248
424,759,003 (March 31, 2023: 424,758,026) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up [Refer Note: v(c) below)

Total 4,248 4,248

(iii) Movement in equity share capital

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
In Numbers Amount In Numbers Amount
At the beginning of the year 424,758,026 4,248 395,958,100 3.960
Preferential issue during the year 977 0 28.799.926 288
Outstanding at the end of the year 424,759,003 4,248 424,758,026 4,248

(iv) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

a. The Parent Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 210/~ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend

b. In the event of liquidation of the Parent Company, equity share holders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Parent Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

¢. The issued, subscribed and fully paid-up equity share capital includes ¥977 (March 31, 2023: Z150) equity shares of 2 10/- each fully paid up issued to private equity investors who carry certain
exit rights as per Shareholders Agreement dated March 24, 2023.

(v) Details of share holders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Number of equity

o .
shares o holding

As at March 31, 2024

Aequs Manufacturing Investments Private Limited 263.837,003 62.11%
Melligeri Private Family Foundation 114,431,505 26.94%
As at March 31, 2023

Aequs Manufacturing Investnents Private Limited 263,837,003 621 1%
Melligeri Private Family Foundation 114,431,505 26.94%

(vi) Details of shareholding of Promoters
As on March 31, 2024

Name ol the Promoter

Number of shares

Percentage of total
number of shares

Percentage of
change during the

year
Aequs Manufacturing Investiments Private Limited 263,837,003 62.11% 0.00%
Melligeri Private Family Foundation 114,431,505 26.94% 0.00%

As on March 31, 2023

Name of the Promoter

Number of shares

Percentage of total
number of shares

Percentage ol
change during the

veir
Aequs Manufacturing Investments Private Limited 263,837,003 62.11% 2.33%
Melligeri Private Family Foundation 114,431,505 26.94% -1.96%
As at
(vii)Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash Vlarc:s;l“ 2024 Vlarchs;; 2023

Number of equity shares

28.799.776

Shares allotted through the conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures -

(vni) During the year ended March 31. 2024 the Company issued \il (March 31. 2023: 18.961.938) equity shares of 210 each fully paid up at premium of INil (March 31, 2023: Z 18.90) per
share and during the year ended March 31. 2024 the Company issued Nil (March 31. 2023: 9.837.838) equity shates af 210 each fully paid up at premium of T Nil (Maich 31, 2023: % 19.60) per
share through comversion of compulsorily convertible debentures

(ix) There are no shares which are reserved for issuance and there are no securities issued/ outstanding which are convertible into equity shares, except Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
and ESOP

{x) Shares rescrved for issue under options

For details of shares reserved for issue under the emplayee stock option {ESOP) plan of the Company. refer note [4B.

ESOP Trust was created for the welfare and benefit of employees, consultants and directors of the Company. The Board of Directors has approved the employee stock option plan of the Company
On October 25, 2013, July 23, 2016 , December |5, 2021 and December 22, 2021 the trust purchased 3,500,000, 2.900,000. 3,000,000 and 3,000,000 equity shares respectively of the Company
using the proceeds from interest free loan of Z 235 obtained from the Company

(i) There are no instances of shares allotted as fully paid by way of bonus shares and shates bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the year end
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14A Instruments entirely equity in nature

(i) Authorised Preference Share Capital No ol shares Amount

As at April 01, 2022 )

Increase during the year 160,000,000 1.600
As at March 31, 2023* 160,000,000 1,600
Increase during the year 248,900,000 2,489
As at March 31, 2024 408,900,000 4.089

(ii) Issued, subscribed and paid up Cempulsorily Convertible Preference Share Capital (CCPS})
Issued, subscribed and paid up Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share Capital (CCPS)

407,115,771 (March 31, 2023: 37.206,340) Convertible Preference Shares of 2 10/- each 4,071 572
Less: Re-classified to borrowing* . (372)
Total 4,071
(iii) Movement in CCPS
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
In Numbers Amount In Numbers Amount
At the beginning of the year 57,206,340 572 2z =
Add: Preferential issue during the year 349.909.43| 3.499 57,206,340 572
Outstanding at the end of the year 407,115,771 4,071 57,206,340 572
Less: Re-classified to borrowing*® 5 - 37,206,340 372
Al the end of the year 407,115,771 4,071 - =
* These CCPS were classified as a liability instrument as at 31 March 2023 as it did not meet the fixed for fixed conversion ratio as of the last balance sheet date. . Refer note {v) below.
(iv) Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the aggregate CCPS in the Company
As on March 31. 2024 As on March 31, 2023
Name of Holder No. of CCPS Value of CCPS % holding No. of CCPS Value of CCPS % holding
Amicus Capital Private Equity 1 LLP 51,966,240 520 13% 51.966,240 520 91%
Amicus Capital Partners India Fund | 5,240,100 52 1% 5,240,100 52 9%
Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I 66,007,260 660 16% .
Catamaran Ekam AIF 47,528,416 475 12% L
Steadview Capital Mauritius Limited 52,597,824 526 13%|
Sparta Group LLC 40,557.366 406 10% -
Amansa Investments Lid 124,207,157 1.242 3% -
Others 19.011.408 190 5%

(v) Terms and rights attached to Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

As per the Shareholders Agreement ("SHA") dated March 24, 2023 and October 12, 2023 the Company is required to provide an exit to investors by way of Qualified IPO or through a sale ta a
financial investor on or before January 31, 2026, the failure of which will provide the investor the right to require the Company and/or the Promoters to take reasonable efforts to provide an exit to
Investors in any other manner. A successful Qualified PO or sale to a financial investor is not in control of the company, hence it does not have unconditional right to defer the settlement of CCPS
beyond January 31.2026. [n the SHA entered during the year, it is stated that the Company has no obligation to buy back the investor securities

As per the SHA, the Conversion ratio is Lo be calculated based on EBITDA of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis achieved in FY 2023-2024 (“*FY24 EBITDA™). compuled
as per the formula defined in Shareholder’s agreement. Since the Conversion ratio has been as 31 March 2024, it met the criteria to be classified as a equity instrument.

(A) CCPS (Round 1)
(i) As per the shareholders agreement dated March 24, 2023, the Company has issued firsl tranche cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS) which are held by investors (i.¢
other than promoters). If declared by the Board. each holder of such CCPS. shall be entitled to receive a preferential cumulative dividend at the rate of 0. 1" per annum. Each CCPS holder would
be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of all other classes. on As If Converted Basis
(it) CCPS is compulsorily convertible into Equity Shares of the Company upon the occurrence of any of the following events:-

(a)Listing of the Equity Shares of the Company under a QIPO (as defined in the SHA) or IPO (as defined in the SHA) (**Public Offering™): or

(b)Expiry of 19 (nineteen) years and 11 (eleven) months from the date of the issuance and allotment
(i1i) The investors are entitled to convert all or part of the CCPS into equity shares any time prior to the expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the date of issuance and allotment or an IPO.
(iv) The investors are entitled to attend all general meetings of the Company and vote thereat along with the Shareholders, The voting rights of investors are to determined on an As If Converted
Basis determined as per the applicable Conversion Ratio at such time

(v) Per the SHA, the Conversion Ratio is to be calculated based on EBITDA of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis achieved in FY 2023-2024 (“FY24 EBITDA™) as per the
formula defined in Shareholder's agreement, Since the Conversion ratio has been as 31 March 2024, it met the criteria Lo be classified as a equity instrument, Accordingly, the CCPS has been
reclassified from financial liability to “Instrument entirety Equity in nature™ in current financial year

(B) CCPS (Round 2)

(i) As per the shareholders agreement dated October 12, 2023, the Company has further issued second tranche Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Participaling Preference Shares (CCPS) which
are held by investors (i.e. other than promoters). If declared by the Board, each holder of such CCPS, shall be entitled to receive a preferential cumulative dividend at the rate of 0.1% per annum
Each CCPS holder would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the halders of shares of all other classes. on As If Converted Basis.

(it) CCPS is compulsorily convertible into Equity Shares of the Company upon the occurrence of any of the following events:-
(a)Listing of the Equity Shares of the Company under a QIPO (as defined in the SHA) o1 IPO (as defined in the SHA) ("Public Offering™): or
(b)Expiry of 19 (nineteen) years and 11 (eleven) months from the date of the issuance and allotment

(i1i) The investors are entitled to convert all or part of the CCPS into equity shares any time prior to the expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the date of issuance and allotment or an IPO
(iv) The investors are entitled to attend all general meetings of the Company and vote thereat along with the Shareholders The voting rights of investors are be determined on an As If Converted

Basis determined as per the applicable Conversion Ratio at such time

(v) Per the StIA. the Conversion Ratio is to be calculated based on EBITDA of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis achieved in FY 2023-2024 ("FY24 EBITDA™) as per the
formula defined in Shareholder's agreement. Since the Conversion ratio has been as 31 March 2024, it met the criteria to be classified as a equity instrument.
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14B - Stock option plan

The Parent Company grants stock options to the employees of the Parent Company and its operating subsidiaries and other group entities.

During the year ended March 31, 2024 four stock option plans (ESOP) viz., ESOP scheme 2013, ESOP scheme 2016, ESOP scheme 2020 and ESOP scheme 2022 were in existence. ESOP scheme is
administered through and ESOP trust called as "Aequs Stock Option Plan Trust” (ESOP Trust’) that has been constituted on May 14, 2013. The object of the ESOP Trust is to manage schemes made
available for the benefit of the employees. The relevant detuils of the schemes and the grants are listed separately below

ESOP Scheme 2013

On July 4, 2013, the Board of Directors approved the equity settled ESOP scheme 2013 for issue of stock options to the key employees, consultants and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.
joint ventures and associates. According to the ESOP scheme 2013. the employee selected by the ESOP commiittee from time to time will be entitled to stock options, subject to satisfaction of the
prescribed vesting conditions

The details of activity under the ESOP scheme 2013 are summarised below:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Exercise Woeighted average
Particulars . Number exercise price Number WAEP
price range (WAEP)
Options outstanding at beginning of year 10-26 3.834.813 18.61 4.243.126 18.83
Add:
Options granted during the year 10 - 26 - - - -
Less:
Options exercised during the year 10-26 - - - B
Options forfeited during the year 10-26 (163.750) 1758 (408.313) 10.00
Options outstanding at the end of year 10- 26 3.671.063 18.83 3.834.813 19.77
Option exercisable at the end of year 2.363.563 2.269.544

ESOP Scheme 2016
The Board of Directors approved the Employee Share Option Plan 2016 structured to reward employees. Accordingly. the Parent Company has created 2.900.000 share option pool to be allocated and
granted from time to time to employees. As Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) committee has been formed with powers delegated from the Board of Directors to manage the ESOP scheme

The details of activity under the ESOP scheme 2016 are summarised below :

March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
xercis: Weighted 4 Weighted aver:
Particulars E.'(ermse Number €ig e.d " e.rage Number Weig ?d ‘nevrage

price range exercise price exercise price
Options outstanding at beginning of year 24-40 2542227 28.24 2.776.852 28.00
Add:
Options granted during the year 24-40 - -
Less:
Options exercised during the year 2440 (10.000) 2378 {7.000) 24
Options forfeited during the year 24-40 (601.813) 26.89 1227.623) 11.83
Options outstanding at the end of year 24-40 1.930.414 28.00 2.542.227 29.46
Option exercisable at the end of year 1.065.914 1415.775

ESOP Scheme 2020
The Board of Directors approved the Employee Share Option Plan 2020 structured to reward employees. Accordingly. the Parent Company has created 5.000.000 share option pool to be allocated and
granted from time to time to emplayees, As Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) committee hias been formed with powers delegated from the Board of Directors to manage the ESOP scheme

The details of activity under the ESOP scheme 2020 are sumimarised below :

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Exer"cise Number Weighl?d ave.rage Number Weighte.d ave.rage
price exercise price exercise price
Options outstanding at beginning of year 26-26 3.000,000 26.10 3.000.000 26,10
Add:
Options granted during the year 26-26 - -
Less:
Options exercised during the year 26-26 - - -
Options forfeited during the year 26-26 {1.250.000) 26.10 - -
Options outstanding al the end of year 26-26 1.750.000 26.10 3.000,000 26.10

Option exercisable al the end of year 175,000 268.548




Aequs Private Limited CIN : UR0302KA2000PTC026760

Notes to consolidated financial statements
(AN amounts are in INR Millions, exvept share duta, unles s othenvise siuted)

14B - Stock option plan

ESOP Scheme 2022
The Board of Directors approved the Employee Share Option Plan 2022 structured to reward employees, Accordingly. the Parent Company has created 6.000.000 share option pool to be allocated and
granted from time to time to employees. As Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) committee has been formed with powers delegated from the Board of Directors to manage the ESOP scheme

The details of activity under the ESOP scheme 2022 are summarised below -

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Particulars Exel:mse Number W elghr?d A\eIrage Number Wﬂghte'd a\e.rage
price exercise price exercise price
Options outstanding at beginning of year 26-30 2.045.000 26.54 1.8035.000 26.10
Add:
Options granted during the year 26-30 - - 275.000 29.35
Less:
Options exercised during the year 26-30 - - . -
Options forfeited during the vear 26-30 (130,000) 28.02 (35,000) 26.10
Options outstanding at the end of year 26-30 1.895.000 26.10 2.045.000 22.59
Option exercisable at the end of year 201,500 171.290

(This spuce iy intentionally left blunk)
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Note 15 - Other equity

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Retained earnings (7,276) (7,115)
Securities premium reserve 7,294 5,686
Share options outstanding account 60 50
Foreign currency translation reserve (287) (245)
Statutory reserve I 11
Revaluation reserve - 173
Common control capital reserve 94 94
Treasury shares (265) (265)
Other reserves 215 149
Non Controlling Interest (D) (113)
(163) (1,575)
(i) Reserves and Surplus
Retained earnings (7.276) (7.115)
Securities premium reserve 7,294 5,686
Share options outstanding account 60 50
77 (1,379)
(ii) Capital Reserve
Foreign Currency translation Reserve (287) (245)
Statutory Reserve 11 11
Revaluation Reserve - 173
Common control capital reserve 94 94
Treasury shares (265) (265)
Other reserves 215 149
(232) (83)
Total Reserves and surplus (154) (1,462)
Non Controlling Interest (9) (113)
Total Other Equity (163) (1,57%)
(i) Retained earnings
Opening Balance (7,115) (6.141)
Opening reserves of acquired entity - -
Net profit/(loss) for the year (147) (988)
Transfer of deficit/(surplus) pertaining to subsidiary on loss of control -
Transfer from revaluation reserve 173 =
Reduction due to merger 33 -
DCO Entities -0
NCI movement -238 -
Transfer of reserve relating to lapse of vested option 10 2
Investment elimination -
SCl sale
Transfer from other reserves -
Acquisition accounting - -
Transferred from 'Foreign currency translation reserve'™ - -
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings :
- Share of OCI of associates and joint ventures |
- Gain on fair value measurement of previously held interest in AAl and AFCPPL - -
- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 2 11
Closing balance (7.281) (7.115)
(154) (1.462)
Non controlling interest
(ii) Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 5,686 5,137
Opening premium of Acquired Entity -
Add: Premium received during the year 1,787 551
Exercised options proceeds received -
DCO Entities -
Unidentified movement
Less: Utilisation towards share issue expenses (180) (2)
Closing balance 7,292 5,686
(iii) Share options outstanding account
Opening balance 50 30
Employee stock option expense 20 22
Transfer relating to lapse of vested option to Retained Eamings (10) (2)
NCI movement -
61 50

Closing balance
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(iv) Foreign currency translation reserve
Opening balance (245)
Reclassification from Reserves -
DCO Entities

Exchange Difference due to Creditor Debtor Elimination =
Currency Translation Reserve for the period (42)
Transfer to reserves -
Transfer to retained earnings -
Transfer to reserves pertaining to subsidiary on loss of control

(179)

(66)

Closing balance (287)

(245)

(v) Statutory Reserve
Opening balance i1
Movement for the year -0

Closing balance 11

11

(vi) Revaluation Reserve

Opening balance 173
Reversal of net cartying value of investment property <
Transfer to reserves (173)

173

Closing balance -

173

(vii) Common control capital reserve
Opening balance 94
Movement for the year 0

94

Closing balance 94

94

(viii) Treasury Shares
Opening Balance (265)
Additions during the year z

(265)

Closing balance (265)

(265)

(ix) Acquisition of NCI portion
Opening Balance
Additions during the year

Closing balance -

(x) Investment elimination of NCI portion acquisition
Opening Balance =
Additions during the year

Closing balance -

(xi) Other Reserves

Opening balance 149
Addition during the period -
Cross charge to other group entities- ESOP

Financial guarantee received during the year 66
Reclassification of compulsory convertible debentures to equity

Utilisation towards share issue expenses -
Opening reserves of Acquired Entity -
DCO entities -

96

Closing balance 216

149

(xii) Non Controlling Interest

Opening balance (113)
Amount reclassified to general reserves =
Movement for the year 104

(2

(111)

Closing balance (9

(113)

Nature and purpose of reserves

a .Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares and is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Act. During the year, the

Company has utilized ¥ 180 (March 31, 2023: %3) for share issue expenses.

b. Share options outstanding account

The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the fair value of options issued to employees under Aequs Stock Option Plan.

- - c. Foreign currency translation reserve
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d. Statutory reserve
Statutory reserve represents the reserve that Aequs Aerospace France SAS is maintaining in accordance with the French Commercial Code (the Code). It is
not a free reserve and there are certain restrictions with respect to its utilisation under the Code.

e. Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve was created in the prior years to record surplus arising out of revaluation of Property, plant and equipment held by an overseas subsidiary
of the Group. This item of property, plant and equipment was re-classifed to Investment property based on change of use during the year ended March 31,
2021. The carrying value of the investment property was considered to be deemed cost of transition to Ind AS and hence the revaluation reserve was
transferred to retained earnings.

f. Common control capital reserve
Common control capital reserve represents the reserve created on acquisition of AEPPL and ACPPL under common control approach as per Ind AS 103-
Business Combinations. Refer Note 37(C).

g. Treasury shares
This represents amount of loan outstanding given to ESOP trust for purchase of the equity shares of the Company. This balance has been regrouped as
compared to previous year for better presentation.

h. Other reserve
Other reserves includes fair value of financial guarantee and any other adjustments as may be required under Ind AS.

Note: For movement in reserves, please refer 'Statement of changes in equity’

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Note 16 (i) - Borrowings

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Non current:
Term loans from banks (secured)
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) (refer note 14)
Sub-total
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Less: Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Total non-current borrowings

Current:
Working capital facilities from banks (secured)
Loans from related parties (unsecured)
Current maturities of term long-term borrowings
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Total current borrowings

1,074 978
- 575
1,074 1,553
21 291
8 9
855 1.253
1,573 1,715
264 188
211 291
16 14
2,064 2.208

The Group has various secured and unsecured borrowing denominated in INR, USD and Euro from banks and others. While the working capital facilitities are
repayable on demand, the term loans are repayable over 36 to 90 months. The Group's facilities carry variable interest rates based on benchimarks such as the repo,

MCLR, treasury bills with incremental spread. The average borrowing rate of the Group ranges from 2% to 13% p.a.

Note 16 (ii) - Lease liabilities

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Non current:
Lease liabilities
Total

Current:

Lease liabilities
Total

3.507 3378
3.507 3.378
564 520
564 520

The Group has entered into agreements with lessors for lease of building (factory premises) and plant and machinery. The lease term ranges from 6 to 10 years,

Also Refer Note 5.

Note 16 (iii) - Other financial liabilities
Non current:

Guarantee liability 6 7

Total I 7

Current:

Capital creditors 356 129

Guarantee liability 6 5

Employees related liabilities 134 130

Total 496 265
Note 16 (iv) - Trade payables

Current:

Trade payables

- Dues to micro and small enterprises (refer Note 42) 10 2

- Other trade payables (refer note 39 tor trade payables to related parties) 2,015 2256

Total 2,025 2,258
Ageing of Trade payvables as on March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due | Less than 1| 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years More than Total
year 3 years
(i) Undisputed dues -MSME 0 10 - 10
(ii) Undisputed dues -Others 548 1.168 49 67 34 1,866
Unbilled 149 - - 149
Total 697 1,178 49 67 34 2,025
Ageing of Trade payables as on March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due | Less than 1| 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years More than Total
vear 3 vears

(i) Undisputed dues -MSME 1 1 - . - 2
(i1) Undisputed dues -Others 168 1,489 150 49 141 1,997
Unbilled 259 - - - - 259
Total 428 1,490 150 49 141 2,258
Note 17 - Other liabilities

Non current

Statutory dues payable 29

Total - 29

Current

Statutory dues payable 189 241

Provision for income tax - 9

Deterred income 2 |

Other current liabilities | 44

Total 192 295

Note 17(i) - Current tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities

6l

61
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As at As at

Note 18 - Employee benefit obligations March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-Current

Provision for gratuity 96 79
Provision for other retirement benefits 31 31
Total 127 110
Current

5 5

Provision for gratuity

Provision for leave obligation 50 40
Total 55 45

(i) Leave obligation

The leave obligations cover the Group's liability for eamed leave.

The amount of the provision of 50 (March 31, 2023: Z40) is presented as current. However. based on past experience. the Group does not expect all employees
to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Leave obligation not expected to settled within next 12 months 33 24

(ii) Defined contribution plans

India

The Group in India has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as
per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the govemment. The obligation of the Group is limited to the amount
contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is X143
(March 31, 2023:%122).

United States of America

The Group maintains a defined contribution employee retirement plan through its PEO Insperity, pursuant to Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. which
includes a 401(k) feature which enables the employee to make a pre-tax or post-tax(ROTH) salary reduction contribution to the plan. The Company has a match
of employee contributions of 25% of employee contribution up to 1% of eligible compensation. Substantially all employees who have completed six months of
service are eligible to participate in the plan. The Company did not make a discretionary contribution for the years ended March 31. 2024

(ii) Defined benefit obligations
Gratuity

India

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of §
years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of Gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the no.of years of service. The Gratuity plan is a funded plan and Group makes contribution to recognise funds
in India. -

The Group makes annual contribution for the Gratuity plan to an Insurance Company. Such contributions are recognised as plan assets. The Group make
contribution to the planned assets based on the expected expected payout. Final Hability is actuarially valued and recognised in the books as at the end of each
year by the Group. Upon actuarial valuation at the year end, any resultant difference between the liability and fair value of the fund is recognised in the books of
accounts as liability.

France

The French pension system is operated on a “pay as you go~ basis. Each employee is entitled to receive a basic pension from the Social Security plus a
complementary pension from defined contribution schemes ARRCO and AGIRC. Moreover, retiring allowances (lump sums) must, by law be paid by the
employer when employees retire.

The allowances to be paid to Group's employees are defined by the Collective Bargaining Agreement of the Metallurgical [ndustry.

All permanent employees are being covered on this scheme. Normal Retirement Age in France is 62 but 41.50 years of employment is required. Benefit rights are
not vested before Normal Retirement Age.

The pensionable salary is equal to the average over the last 12 months of the gross paid salaries. Should an employee wants to retire at his/her own initiative the
allowance is subject to social charges.

This retiring allowances scheme is not extemally funded through an insurance contract.
(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Note 18 - Emplovee benefit obligations

March 31,2024 March 31.2023

(a) Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss
Current service cost

Interest on defined obligation

Shared service cost recovered

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized during the period

Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss (A)

(b) Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income

(Gains)/losses arising from changes in

return on plan assets

demographic assumptions

financial assumptions

experience adjustments

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (B)

Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income (A+B)

(c) Changes in the defined benefit obligation during the vear Obligations at the heginning of the vear

18 17
6 3
(2) 2)
a )
21 18
(0 (©
3 (0
3 3
(5) (6}
1 9
22 9

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Obligations as at the beginning of the year 84 80
a, Current service cost 18 16
Interest cost 8 5
Benefits paid (10} S)
Settlements (H (2)
Liabilities assumed 1 1
Acquisition / divestiture [()] (H
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses (H 2)
- arising from changes in demographic assumptions 3 QB
- arising from changes in financial assumptions Rl )
- arising from changes in experience adjustments. (3) (6)
Defined benefit obligation as of current year end 100 84
(d) Change in fair value of plan assets March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 0 0
Expected return on plan assets 0 ()]
Contributions 2 3
Benefit payments trom plan assets 2) 3
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on plan assefs 0 0
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1] 0
(e) Net (asset) / liability
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 102 84
Fair value of plan assets 0
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) recognized in balance sheel 102 84
() Classification
Current 5 5
Non current 96 79
Total 101 84
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
g) Investment details of plan assets
Pooled asset with an insurance company 1 0
Total 1 0
(h) Actual return on plan assets 0 0
(i) Expected contribution in next year 2 2
2 2
Actuarial assumptions
Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate per annum 7.13%-7.5% 7.45%-7.3%
Salary escalation rate per annum 10.0% 10%

Other actuarial assumptions

9% 10 18% at 21 to 30 years

Alttition rate $ S age and reducing to 0“./0 to 8% 0%-18%ona
Q(N ats < e at older ages according to graduated scale
(2] //‘5 eraduated scale
Retirement age \ S f;\ 58 58
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Note 18 - Employee benefit obligations

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as under:

Changes in assumption March 31. 2024 March 31,2023
Discount rate

Detfined benefit obligation (DBO) on increase in 50 bps 96 81
Discount rate +50 basis points impact (%) -4.43% -3.87%
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on decrease in 50 bps 108 89
Discount rate -30 basis points impact (%) 7.89% 5.94%
Salary increase rate

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on increase in 50 bps 107 39
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO 7.30% 3.57%
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on decrease in 50 bps 96 81
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 4% -3.67%

Sensilivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumptions namely discount rate and salary assumptions have been shown in the table above at the end of the
reporting period, showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by the changes. The method used to calculate the liability in these scenarios
is by keeping all the other parameters and the data same as in the base liability calculation except the parameters to be stressed, There have been no changes from the
previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses.

The mortality and attrition does not have a significant impact on the liability hence are not considered as significant actuarial assumption for the purpose of
sensitivity analysis

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations.

Expected future cashflows (in million) [Undiscounted| March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Less than one year 5 6
Between one and five year 23 25
After five year 267 199
Total 295 230

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation in years Il 11

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans. the Group is exposed to number of risks. the most significant of which are detailed below:

(i) Market risk (discount rate)

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. The discount rate reflects the time value of money
An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the
corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to tluctuations in the yields as at the valuation dale.

(ii) Longevity risk

The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after. Typically for the benefits paid on or before the retirement
age. the Tongevity risk is not very material

(iti) Annual risk

Salary increase assumption

Actual salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation. will result in increase to the obligation at a rate that is higher than expected

Attrition/withdrawal assumption
If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption. then the benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend

on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

(This spuce is intentionally left blunk)
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Year ended Year ended
Note 19 - Revenue from operations March 31,2024 March 31,2023
(Restated*)
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of manufactured goods 9,401 7.901
Rendering of services 11 13
9.412 7914
Other operating income
Scrap sales 237 195
Others 2 12
239 207
Total 9,651 8,121
Note:
(i) Aggregate amount of transaction price allocated towards performance obligations unfulfilled as at reporting date. 42 49
(i1) Refer note 38 for geographical disaggregation of revenue.
Note 20 - Other income (restated)
Government grant (MEIS) - 2
Liabilities no longer required written back 30 58
Dividend income - 12
Gain on derecognition of lease - 19
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 10 0
Exchange difference(other than borrowings) 33 96
Interest income* 82 13
Unwinding of discount on security deposit* 17 20
Financial guarantee income* 6 10
Gain on mutual funds 4 -
Miscellaneous Income 50 54
232 284

Total

*The Group, discloses Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and amortization (*EBITDA”) in its Statement of Profit and Loss. Till the previous year ended 31
March 2023, finance income was presented in its Consolidated statement of profit and loss as an item after EBITDA. Asa result, Total income amounting to % 8,362

was reported without including the finance income.

During the current year, the Group concluded that Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 requires companies to include all items of income within Total Income.
Consequently, the Group has corrected its presentation by restating its corresponding figures as presented in these financial statements by reclassifying finance
income within ~Other income”. As a result, the balance of Other income has increased from Z 241 to ¥ 284 with a corresponding increase in Total income and
reported EBITDA. This change in presentation does not have any impact on Group’s reported [Profit / Loss after tax] for the year ended March 31, 2023 nor does it

affect the balance sheet as at that date.

Note 21 - Cost of materials consumed

Raw material consumed

Opening stock

Less: Movement in provision tor slow moving inventory
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Closing stock

Less: Movement in provision for slow moving inventory
Total cost of materials consumed

Note 22 - Purchase of traded goods
Purchase of traded goods
Total

Note 23 - Change in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods

Inventory at the end of the year (a)
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Less: Provision for slow moving inventory

Add: [nventories pertaining to entities acquired

Inventory at the beginning of the year (b)
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Less: Provision for slow moving inventory

Muyvement in provision for slow moving inventory

Suh.-q;‘al, \
Exchyghee Jlr'fel'cncc

; .dzu.. 1'/11 inventories ol work -in-progress and finished goods(b-a)

1,392 942
(135)
4,649 4,612
1,684 1,392
(170) (7N
4,391 4.169
21
21
1,140 920
857 842
(82)
1,915 1.762
85
920 662
842 622
(120)
1.642 1.284
(26)
(273) (367)
48 18
(225) (349)
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Note 24 - Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Employee stock option expense

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Note 25 - lmpairment losses on financial assets

Loss allowance on trade receivables
Total

Note 26 - Other Expenses

(a)Cost of spares and components
Opening stock

Provision for slow moving inventory
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Closing stock
Provision for slow moving inventory
Cost of spares and components
Subcontracting expenses
Insurance
Power and fuel
Repairs and maintenance
Machinery
Building
Others
Legal and professional fees
Payment to auditors
Rental charges
Printing and stationery
Freight & forwarding
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Communication
Advertising and sales promotion
Royalty fee
Bank charges
Loss on sale / disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange loss (other than borrowings)
Share issue expenses of subsidiaries
Provision for doubtful advances & advances written off
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Note 27 - Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property. plant and equipment™®
Amortisation of intangible assets**
Depreciation on investment property
Depreciation on right-of-use assets***

Total

* Refer Note 4 tor further details on property. plant and equipment
*#* Refer Note 6 for turther details on intangible assets
**x Refer Note 5 for further details on right-of-use assets

Note 28 - Finance cost

Interest expense on borrowings
Exchange differences (on borrowings)
Financial guarantee expense

[nterest on lease liabilities

Total

Note 29 - Exceptional items

Impairment loss on receivable from related parties
Impairment loss on loans receivable from related parties
Gain on sale of investment property

Total

Note 30 - Income tax expense
Current tax
Total

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated™)

1,200 1,224
143 122
21 24
70 76
1,434 1.446
15 9
15 9
86 200
468 283
112 86
442 348
1,186 1,024
59 59
294 255
106 113
74 66
85 103
133 108

9 8

36 42

6 6

115 91
54 33
29 48
38 12
32 12

- 70

54 40
10 3

- |

- 13

22 -
28 22
2,812 2.479
382 337
51 44

0 25
644 589
1.077 995
276 240
43 146

15 20
304 240
H38 646
- 1

. 6

(186) -
(186) 7

115 -
115 -
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Note 31 - Fair value measuremcent

Financial instruments by category

Fair value | Classification | Asat March 31, | As at March 31,

hierarchy 2024 2023
Financial assets
Non current investments . Refer Note 8 I t
Current investmenls Level | FVTPL 291 -
Trade receivables Level 3 Amortised cost 1,369 1,071
Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances Level 3 Amortised cost 2.520 513
Other financial assets {Includes financial guarantee liability measured at fair value ¥ 63 (March 31, 2023: 2 3)] Level 3 Amortised cost 410 431
Total linancial assets 4,597 2,016
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) Level 3 Amortised cost 2919 3461
Lease liabilities Level 3 Amortised cost 4,070 3.898
Trade payables Level 3 Amortised cost 2,025 2.258
Other financial liabilities [Includes financial guarantee liability measured at fair value 1 (March 31, 2023:  12) Level 3 Amortised cost 503 272
Total financial liabilities 9.517 9.889

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

(a) recognised and measured at fair value.

(b) recognised and measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value. the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underncath the table:

Level I: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoled prices

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (derivative mainly forward contract) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use
of obser able market data and rely as little as pussible on entity-specific estimates. £ all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are obsenvable. the instrument is included in

level 2

Level 3: 1f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data. the instrument is included in level 3,

(ii} Valuation process

The finance department of the Group includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes. including tevel 3 fair values,

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and labili

cs measured at amortised cosl

The carrying amounts of trade receivables. trade payables. capital creditors. cash and cash equivalents. othet financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fuir values,

due to their short-term nature

The fair values for interest free security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a risk free rate ot interest. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
hierarchy due (o the inclusion of unobsen able inputs including counterparty credit risk

The tair values of non-current borrow ings are based on discounted cash flows using a current barrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use

of unobservable inputs. including own credit risk

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost. the carrying amounts are equal Lo fair values

(iv) Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market 1s determined using saluation technique. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of metheds and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end ol cach reporting period.

(This space is fntentionally lett blunk)
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Note 32 - Financial risk management

The Group's business activities exposes it to a variety of financial risks such as liquidity risk. credit risk and market risk. The Group's senior management under the supervision of
the Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Group’s risk management and have established policies to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Group. They help in identification. measurement. mitigation and reporting all risks associated with the activities of the Group, These risks are identified on a
continuous basis and assesses for the impact on the financial performance. The below table broadly summarises the sources of tinancial risk to which the Group is exposed to and
how the Group manages the risk.

Financial risk management

Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Cash and cash equivalents. trade Ageing analysis Credit | Diversification of bank deposits. Customers
Credit risk receivables and financial assets ratings credit analysis and monitoring of credit

measured at amortised cost limits

m p Borrowings. security deposits Rolling cash flow Availability of borrowings facilities

Liquidity risk received and other liabilities. forecasts

Future commercial transactions Cash flow forecasting  |Natural hedging for receivables and

recognised financial assets and sensitivity analysis payables,
Market risk - Foreign exchange liabilities not denominated in Indian

rupee,

Long-term and short-term borrowings|Sensitivity analysis Maintaining a judicious mix of variable and
Market risk -Interest rate risk at variable rates. fixed rate debt

A Credit risk

Credit risk is a risk where the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial loss. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with banks. as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables. other receivables and loans and deposits

(i) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to a risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the group. The group usually deals with creditworthy
counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The exposure is continuously monitored,

(ii) Provision for expected credit loss
The group's financial assets mainly comprise of investments. deposits with banks. loans & lease deposits.

1) Loans and Deposits :

Loans and Deposils are classified under the A category having negligible or nil risk based on past history of defaults and reasonable forward looking information, Loans and
deposits comprises of mainly refundable security deposits made on buildings (leased premises). Since these are assets with nil risk. the expected probability of default is "Nil%"
and hence no provision for expected credit losses are made in the financial statements.

2) Deposits with bank :

They are considered to be having negligible risk or nil risk. as they are maintained with high rated banks and the period of such deposits is not exceeding one year

3) Trade receivables and other dues from related parties

No significant expected credit loss provision has been created for trade receivables. Further. receivables are expected to be collected considering the past trend of no defaults and
that the balances are not significantly aged, Full provision is made for balances that management believes are credit impaired.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivalies ? \";\.'a?n
Amount (=) b ( 3

As at April 01, 2022 36 S %

Charged to profit and loss 9 @ =

Utilisation/ reversal in loss allowance (4) < M

As at March 31, 2023 41

Charged to profit and loss IS

Utilisation/ reversal in loss allowance (30)

As at March 31. 2024 26

B Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk where an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with tinancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses. Group's treasury maintains flexibility in [unding by maintaining availability of required funds

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

(i) Financing arrangements

The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period: As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,
2023

A. Expiring within one ycar 753 707
B. Expiring beyond one year (bank loans) 2.363 308
3.116 1.015

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact ol discounting is not

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at March 31, 2024

Less than 1 vear 1to S vears More than 5 vears Total
Borrowings 2.047 837 18 2.903
Trade payables 1.874 151 . 2.025
Lease liabilities 721 2881 1.172 4.774
Other financial liability 496 6 - 502
Total non derivative liabilities 5,138 3.876 1,190 10.204
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at.March 31. 2023
o O Less than 1 vear 1 to 5 vears More than 5 vears Total
Borrowings Frag s A 4131 1.690 230 6.051
Trade payables C’_-.'/ f\"—( '\ 2.860 - 2.860
Lease liabilities m vl 622 2.861 1.327 4810
Other financial liability \ / / 626 87 - 713
T 8,239 4.638 1,557 14,434
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C Market risk

Market risk is a risk where the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group's functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through sensitivity analysis of probable movement in exchange
rate as at the reporting period,

The Group primarily imports materials which are denominated in foreign currency which exposes it to foreign currency risk. The Group has a natural hedge in terms of its
receivables and payables being in USD. The Group also has risk in terms of translation of its foreign operations, Further. any additional exposure is continuously monitored and
hedging options like forward contracts are taken whenever they are expected to be cost effective.

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR as against respective foreign currency are as follows as at March 31. 2024

GBP uUSb EUR HKD

Financial asset

Trade receivable - 1.760 2 -
Other financial assets - 39 194 -
Other current assets 5 21 9 -
Other non current assets - 24 . g
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) S 1,864 205 "
Financial liability

Trade payables A 856 48 20
Borrowings - 1.323 - -
Lease liabilities - - 923 -
Other current liabilities . 177 - -
Contract Liabilities - 49 - -
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 11 2.405 N 20

The Group's exposure (o foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR as against respective foreign currency are as follows as at March 31, 2023

GBP USD EUR HKD
Financial asset
Trade receivable | 1.121 |
Loans {(unsecured) - 255 563 -
Other financial assets . 0 253 -
Other current assets 4 7 -
Other non current assets = 0 =
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 5 1,383 818 -
Financial liability
Trade payables 2 360 8 20
Bank Borrowings - 684 - -
Other Loans - 786 . -
Lease liabilities - - 1.099 -
Other current liabilities - 49 219
Contract liabilities - 47 -
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 2 1,926 1,326 20

(b) Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in exchange rates arising from foreign currency denominated financial instruments is given below

Impact on profit after tax
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,
2023
USD Sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 5" (20) 20)
INR/USD - decrease by 5% 20 20
GBP Sensitivity
INR/GBP - Increase by 5% (0) 0
INR/GBP - decrease by 3% 0 (D]
EUR Sensitivity
INR/EUR - Increase by 5% (28) (18)
INR/EUR - decrease by 5% 28 18
HKD Sensitivity
INR/EUR - Increase by 5% h (I
INR/EUR - decrease by 5% | |
(iii) Interest rate risk
(a) The exposure of Group's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end ol the reporting period
Variable rate borrowings 2.428 1.729
Fixed rate borrowings 4.335 5.630
Total borrowings 6,763 7.359
(1) Profit & loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense [rom borrowings as a result of change in
Impact on profit after tax
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis points N (6)
[nterest rates - decrease by 50 basis points 9 6

(iii) Price risk * \

Price risk is Lhe risk of a decline in the value of a security oran invesin

& nuh has invested in mutufy fun
0
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Note 34 - Capital management

Risk management

For the purpose of Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to:

(i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(ii) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio and is measured by Net debt (tolal borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) to equity.

(i) Net Debt to Equity Ratio

Net debt
Total Equity

Net debt to equity ratio

Note 35 - Contingent liabilities

Labour related matters (Refer Note i)
Tax matters

As at - As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4,470 5.061
8,156 2914
0.55 1.74
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
60 52
844 844

(i) A few cases have been filed against the Company in District Labour court, Belagavi. [f the Labour Court passes an award against the Company, the probable
compensation would amount to ¥ 22 (March 31, 2023: % 19) . The Company is however confident of winning this case based on the counsel advice and hence the

same is not provided in the standalone financial statements.

(ii) Tt is not practicable to estimate for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above matters pending resolution of the above

matters.
(iii) The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

Other than the matter disclosed above, the Group is involved in claims relating to various matters that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business.

Some of these demands are disputed by the Group, and matters are presently under litigation with the counter parties. Management is of the view that above matters

will not have any material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position and results of operations.

Note 36 - Commitments

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account net of advances and not provided for.

Particulars

(1} Property. plant and equipment

Note 37 - Earnings per share

As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
154 207
154 207
As at As at

March 31. 2024

March 31. 2023

(a) Eamings per share (basic and diluted)
-From continuing operations
-From discontinued operations
Total basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company

(b) Profit attributable to the equity share holders used in calculating basic and diluted eamings per share
-From continuing operations
-From discontinued operations

(c) Weighted Average number of Equity shares of 10 each

(0.16) (2.42)

(0.04) (0.02)

(0.20) (2.44)

(108) (988)

(88) (980)

(20) (8)
544.522.820 405.347.665

Diluted Earning per share

ESOP's outstanding have an impact of reducing the loss per share on dilution and hence has an anti dilutive impact on the earnings per share.

(This space is imtentionally lefi blunk)
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Note 39 - Related Party Transactions

Names of related partics and related party relationship

Relationship [Name of the related party

Related parties where control exists

Ultimate holding company Aequs Inc, Cayman Islands*

Holding company Aequs Manufacturing Investments Private Limited, Mauritius (AMIPL)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the vear
Associates Aequs Foundation, India (ceased to be associate w.e.t February 25, 2024),

Joint ventures Aerospace Processing India Private Limited (‘'API')
SQuAD Forging [ndia Private Limited ('SQuAD')

Subsidiaries AeroStructures Manufacturing India Private Limited, India (ASMIPL)
Aequs Stock Option Plan Trust ('ESOP Trust')

Aequs Aerospace BV, Netherlands (AABV)

Aerospace Manufacturing Holdings Private Limited. India (AMHPL)
Aequs Oil and Gas LLC, USA (AOGLLC)

Aequs Engineered Plastics Private Limited, India (AEPPL)

Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited, India (AFCPPL)
Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited, India (ACPPL)

Aequs Material Management Private Limited, India (AMMPL)
Aequs Toys Private Limited, India (ATPL)

Aerostructures Assemblies India Private Limited, India (AAI)

Subsidiary of ASMIPL
Aequs Aerospace LLC, USA ('AALLCY)

Subsidiary of Aequs Aerospace LLC, USA ('AALLCY)
Aequs Aero Machine Inc, USA ('AAM)

Subsidiary of AABV
SCI Du champ De pivoines. France (SC1 Du) (Merged w.ef April 01, 2023)
Aequs Holdings France SAS, France (AHF ')

Subsidiary of AHF
Aequs Aerospace France SAS ('AAF SAS')

Subsidiaries of AAF SAS
Bernar SAS, France (‘Bernar') (Merged w.ef April 01, 2023)

Subsidiaries of Aequs Engineered Plastics Private Limited ('AEPPL")
Aequs Toys Hong kong Private Limited, Hong Kong ('ATHKPL")

Subsidiaries of Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited (AFCPPL)
Aequs Force Technology company Ltd. Hong kong(AFTCL) The application for its closure/de-
registration has been filed on July 25, 2023

Subsidiaries of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited
Aequs Home Appliances Private Limited (AHAPL)

Subsidiaries of Aequs Toys Private Limited., India

Koppal Toys Molding COE private Limited. India (KTMCPL)

Koppal Toys Tooling COE Private Limited. India(KTTCPL)

Aequs Rajas Extrusion Private Limited, India (AREPL) w.e.f. June 19, 2023

Key management personnel Mr. Rajeev Kaul. Managing Director & Chief Operating Officer (COO)

Mr. Aravind Melligeri. Director

Dr. Ajay Prabhu, Director

Dr. Klaus Richter, Director

Dr. Shubhada Rao. Director

Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman, Director (Ceased Lo be Director w.e.f. September 11, 2023)
Mr. Dinesh lyer, Chief Financial Officer

Mr, Ravi Hugar, Company Secretary

Enterprises in which individuals owning interest in the
Group, or their relatives have control, joint control or
significant influence

Aequs SEZ Private Limited ('ASEZ)

Automotive End Solution Private Limited('AESPL")
Industrial Knowledge Centre Private Limited (1KC")
Hubballi Durable Goods Cluster Private Limited ('HDGCPL")

*Aequs Inc. is 100% beneficially owned and controlled by the Melligiri Foundation.
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Aequs Private Limited CIN : U80302KA2000PTC026760

Notes to consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions. except share data, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended

Note 39 - Related party disclosures- Transactions March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Holding Company - AMIPL
Issue of shares - for consideration other than cash
Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity -

Unsecured loan taken during the year 248
Associates
Aequs Foundation
Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity 0
Sale of PPE 0

Joint Ventures - Transactions

SQuAD
Employee stock option expense cross charge 0
Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity 9
Fair value of financial guarantee issued during the year |
Financial guarantee income 5
[nvestments in equity shares 155
Sale of goods 43
Services provided 2
Purchase of goods and consumables 35
Services received 0

Impatrment of investments =

APl
Employee stock option expense cross charge 0
Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity 14
Services received 267
Services provided 5
Financial guarantee income 1
Fair value of financial guarantee issued 6

Aequs Rajas

Unsecured loan given during the year
Interest income on unsecured loan given

Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity -

Key managerial personnel and their relatives
Managerial remuneration
Mr. Aravind Melligeri

Mr. Rajeev Kaul 15
Mr. Ravi Hugar 3
Mr. Dinesh lyer 14

Ms. Shubhada Rao I

Enterprises in which individuals owning interest in the Group, or their relatives have control, joint control or significant influence - Transactions

IKC
Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity 1
Services received 6l
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Aequs Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in INR Millions, except share data, unless othervise stated)

CIN : US0302KA2000PTC026760

ASEZ
Deposit given
Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity
Expense incurred by related party
Financial guarantee expense
Interest income on unsecured loan
Interest expense on lease liability
Repayment of lease liability
Services received
Services provided
Repayment of loan by ASEZ
Interest expense on unsecured loan taken
Repayment of unsecured loan taken
Sale of PPE
Sale of scrap
Fair value of financial guarantee received during the year

Aequs, Inc.
Expenses incurred by related entity
Interest expenses on Loan taken

MILLC
Expenses incurred by related entity
Interest on loan taken

QGEPL

Services received

MFRE Private Trust
Expenses incurred on behalf ot related entity
Fair value of the guarantee taken
Financial guarantee expense

MFREEPL
Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity
Financial guarantee expense

AESPL
Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity

ALM
Royalty expenses
Branding expenses

HDGCPL
Deposit given
Services received
Repayment of lease liability
Interest expenses on lease liability
Expenses incurred on behalf of related entity

MFRE Taris, LLC
Repayment of lease liability
Interest expenses on lease liability

Note: All transactions were made on commercial terms and conditions.
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Aequs Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions. except share data, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : U80302KA2000PTC026760

Note 40 - Related party disclosures- Balances as at year-end

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Holding Company - AMIPL

Unsecured Borrowings

Associates

AF
Dues from related parties
Investment in share capital

Joint Ventures - Balances

SQuAD
Investment in share capital
Fair value of financial guarantee issued
Fair value of ESOP cost
Trade receivables
Dues from related parties
Trade Payables
Dues to related parties

APl
Investment in share capital
Fair value of ESOP cost
Trade receivables
Dues from related parties
Trade Payables

Aequs Rajas
Unsecured loan given
Dues from related parties
Impairment of loan and interest thereon

IKC
Dues from related parties
Trade Payables

Aequs, Inc.
Unsecured Borrowings
Dues from related parties

MILLC
Dues from related parties
Unsecured Borrowings
Interest Payable

ESOPT
Unsecured loan given

ASEZ
Fair value of financial guarantee received
[nterest accrued and due on above loan
Security deposit (Undiscounted)
Dues from related parties
Dues to related parties
Trade Payables
Advance to suppliers
Trade receivables

AESPL
Trade Payables
Dues to related parties
Dues from related parties
Impairment on dues from related parties

QGEPL
Trade Payables

248

746

Enterprises in which individuals owning interest in the Group, or their relatives have control - Balances

265

131

316
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Aequs Private Limited CIN : U0302KA2000PTC026760

Notes to consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions. except share data, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Altum
Dues from related parties 0 0
MFREEPL
Dues from related parties 0 0
Fair value of financial guarantee received 0 19
MFRE Private Trust
Dues from related parties 2 2
Fair value of financial guarantee received 3 -
ALM
Trade Payables 6 67
AMIPL
Dues from related parties - 0
HDGCPL
Dues from related parties | 0
Dues to related parties - 0
Security deposit 99 54
31 10

Trade Payables

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Aequs Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements

(Al amounts are in INR Millions. except share data. unless othervise stated)

CIN : U80302KA2000PTC026760

Note 40 - Net debt reconciliation

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 793 513
Bank balances other than above 1,727 -
Lease liabilities (4,070) (3.893)
Non-current borrowings (1,074) (978)
Current borrowings (1,582) (1.715)
Current borrowings (related party loans) (264) (188)
Compulsory Convertible Preterence Shares - {575)
Net debt (4,470) (6,846)
Net debt reconciliation:
Liabilities from financing activities Total
Lease Non-current Compulsory Current Current
obligations borrowings Convertible borrowings borrowings
Preference Shares | (Working Capital | (Related Party
Loans) Loans)

Net debt as at April 01, 2022 (2,880) (1,067) - (1,499) (441) (5,887)
Cashflows - - - -
Acquisition of leases/ new borrowings (1,311) (258) (641) (254) - (2,464)
Foreign exchange adjustments (69) (15) - 3 (12) 93)
Repayments 362 283 - - 286 931
Interest expense (240) (83) - (115) 41 479)
Interest paid 240 77 - 115 17 449
Transaction cost - 66 - 66
Reclassification during the year - 32 - 2 34
Transferred to asset held for sale or liabilities

b - 9 - - 9
pertaining to assets held for sale
Qther non-cash adjustments - 44 - 37 82
Net debt as at March 31, 2023 (3,898) (978) (575) (1,713) (188) (7,353)
Cashflows -
Acquisition of leases/ new borrowings (658) (904) - - (76) (1,638)
Foreign exchange adjustments 17 - - (7) - 10
Repayments 468 797 - 155 - 1,420
Interest expense (304) (1 - (216) - (631)
Interest paid 304 111 - 213 628
Other non-cash adjustments 11 575 (14) - 572
As at March 31. 2024 (4.071) (1.074 - (1.582) (264) (6.992)

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)




Aequs Private Limited CIN: U80302KA2000PTC026760

Notes to consolidated linancial statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, except share data. unless otherwise stated)

Note 41 - Assets pledged as security

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings as below. The amounts are as disclosed in the standalone financial statements of
the entities included in consolidation without adjusting for inter-company eliminations.

As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Current
A. Financial assets:
- Trade receivables 1,579 1,269
- Cash and cash equivalents 2,025 96
- Other bank balances 44 34
- Other assets 7 21
B. Non financial assets:
- [nventories 3,039 2.599
- Other assets 89 166
Total current assets pledged as security 6,783 4.185
Non current
- Other financial assets 112
A. Non financial assets:
- Property plant and equipment 4,018 2,968
- Other non-current assets - 31
Total Non-current assets pledged as security 4.018 3.111
Total assets pledged as security 10.801 7.296

Nofe 42 - Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Group has a process of identifying Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME). as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act), by requesting vendor confirmation to the letters circulated by the Group. Disclosures of dues/payments to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to the
extent such enterprises are identified by the Group, based on the responses received from vendors against request for confirmations.

Particulars March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 10 2
(ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 0 0
(iii) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the 16 48
year

(iv) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, - 0
beyond the appointed day during the year

(v) Interest paid. under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the 0 |
appointed day during the year

(vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made - 0
(vit) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 0 -

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Aequs Private Limited CIN : U8S0302KA2000PTC026760
Notes to consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in INR Millions. except share data. unless otherwise stated)

43 Income tax expense

Particulars

March 31. 2024

March 31, 2023

Current tax

Current tax on profits of the year 115 12
Total current tax expense (A) 115 12
Deferred tax

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax asset (7) 59
(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liability (8) (1)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (B) (15) 48
Income tax expense/ (benefit) (A+B) 100 60

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Tax expenses under general provision of income tax
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 42) (1,011)
Tax rate 27.82% 27.82%
Tax at the above rate (12) (281)
Tax impact of permanent differences 20 17
Tax impact of income not chargeable to tax 42 4)
Tax impact related to prior year adjustments - 9
Tax impact of entities in tax holidays on 17
Tax impact of unabsorbed depreciation on which no deferred tax has been recognized (1) 25
Tax impact of business loss and other items on which no deferred tax has been recognized* 195 343
Tax impact due to differential tax rates applicable to subsidiaries (40) -
Others (13) (48)
Total tax expense/{benefit) 100 60

* The Group has recognised deferred tax asset on carried forward losses and unabsorbed tax losses during the year and previous year with respect to Aequs Private
Limited and Aerostructure Manufacturing India Private Limited on the basis of projections to the extent it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilized by the respective entities. In respect of other entities, the Group has not recognised the deferred tax asset in the
absence of reasonable certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufticient future taxable income will be available for set-off.

Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation and amortisation (62) (127)
(62) (127)

Deferred tax assets

Carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 122 141

MAT credit entitlement 95 95

Others 168 200
385 436

Deferred tax assets (net) 323 309

(a) Transfer pricing:

For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company would be carrying out a study to comply with transfer pricing regulations for which the prescribed certificate of
accountant will be obtained. In the opinion of management, no adjustment is expected to arise based on completion of Transfer Pricing Study.

The tax impact for the above purpose has been arrived at by applying tax rate of 27.82% (2023:27.82%) being the substantively enacted prevailing tax rate tor Indian
D purp pplying J y p g

Companies under Income the Tax Act. 1961,

(This space is imentionally lefi blank)




Auedwod aandeu] [%,0 %0 - 16001 eipu] CTIATAY) PATWIT MRALL] TUDLUARRURIN [BLIEBA SNDaY

Auedwon aanovul (%L %0 %9T %001 eipu| (L3120 V) panwr | aeaLL [ uorsnnx:| seley snbay
Suumownuew
1PRauo ) (%0 %0 %001 %001 vipu] ("11VV) PATUTT DIRALL] BIPUL SATQUIDSSY SANONIS0INY
suLImoarnuew
venue)y 940 %0 %001 %001 eipy] (1D Pawry Meald 110 Sutjoa ] sLo ) jeddoy
suLmmpenuew
19RHU0) 1%0 %001 %001 eipu] (TdDIWI) P AL 510.) UIpIno s£o | jeddoy
EIUSIR I
1DENUOY %0 %0 %001 %001 eIpuj (1d1.v) panwip aeand sfo |y snhay
suumagnuew
enuoy (940 %0 %001 001 vipu| (1dVITV) patwry sealsd sasuenddy awop) snhay
mpoagnuew
1anue) 940 %0 %001 %001 RIpu| (T IV) PANIUWITT VAL $191POL] Jawnsuo ) snbay
suoneiado
panunuoasiq |%0 %0 %001 %001 duoy Suoyy CLATLLY)PYT MeALL] Suod] Suoj| s€o | snbay
aupimoynuew
1PENUC) {940 %0 %001 Y001 erpu (1ddTV) PRI ARALL] 831
suonriado
panunuoasiq |%92 %0 Y%bL %001 Juoy] fuoj| (10.1L:1V) panuny Kurdwo;) AGojouydpa] d010,] snbay
Auedwod dAUIRUY |9497 %0 %L %001 ripy| (e1puy) panun‘y Meatr] AJojouydga ] 210, snbay
duumognuew
1DRIIUOY [%9T %0 %bL %001 eipy] (1ddDAV) "PIT 1Ad $190POILJ IDWUNSUO) H210,[ SNbay
Anadoad judunsaaun
JO [eudy %0 %0 %001 %0 douel| SAUI0AL (T durey )y n( 1)
duimdejnuew
1901100 %0 %0 %001 %0 aquel,| (1ewiag) SVS Jeuwlog
Funmoenuew
1DRAUO) 190 Yol %001 %001 (SVS V) SV§ aouri aovdsotay snbay
FUIP|OY TUAWSIAU] |V %0 %001 %001 dourr| (SYSILIV) SVS "aaurt] sSuipjo] snhay
HuLmoejnuew
wenuo) (90 %0 94001 %001 vIpuj ("TJIAS V) PATWIT ATBALL BIPUL SULINORINUR A S2IMINOSOIaY
Fuipjoy waunsoau] |20 %0 %001 %001 eipu] CTHAY) P AL sSuipjo] [ Sunmoagnuey asedsolay
suonelado
Panunuoasicq 1948 %S S0 %56 vsn (YTIO0V) I TT sen pur {1 snhay
FuLmorynue
1PenUO) (960 %0 %001 %001 vsn (WVV) 2uf auyary o1y snbay
SuIpjoy JUAUNSIAUL (950 %0 %001 %001 vsn (OTIVV) 11 audsotay snbay
Fuipjoy uaUNSIAUT |%0 %0 %001 9001 SPURIOIAN (AGVY) Agl adedsoray snbay

£T0T 1€ WIE $TOT 1€ YIBIA | €207 ‘1€ YMIBIN | $TOT ‘1€ UMEIA

JE sy e Sy sy je sy
$)$24)u1 Suljjoajund-uou Kq dnoany ayy £q
sananae [edidulag P19y 3501031 diysisumQ P13y 1sa43ul diysadpumQ ssauisnq jo el g AJua gy Jo dwey

‘ssautsng Jo daepd ediaund nayy ospe st uonensiSan o uoneodioaur jo £nunod ay | dnoan oy Lq ploy
s)y3u Sunoa ay sienba pray sisaaqur diysiaumo jo uonaodord auy pue “dnosny £q £pdanp play are ey saieys £110ba jo £]2j0s unsisuod [eirdes areys ALY A3 "PALIS ISIMIIIO SSIUR) "MO[IY N0 1S IR HTOT "¢ YMUCN 18 S

prsgns sdnoary ay g
saLIrIpISqNg (©)

SIYLIUD DO UL ISINU] b

(PAIIS ASINLIIYIO SSAUN DIDP AADIS 100X SUOTJIN YNT Ul 40 SRInowiv 1)
SIUAWIDIBIS [BIIU UL PIJRPIJOSU0D 0] SIJON
09L9T0).LJOO0OTVIACOLO8N * N1 pMIUIT 3 d snbay




€707 ‘1€ YHEW
PIPUI 1BIA DY) 10y

$T0T ‘1€ YdeIN
P3PUI 1BIA Y] 40,

*1€ IR PAPUI
1e3L ay) 10y

‘1€ yadu A papud
AB3A Yy 40,]

‘[€ YdJBIA papud
Jeak ay) oy

‘1€ yaae papud
FLEVNELI TN |

0¢ s () = 0f = SIUA[EATADA ST PUE YSBD U] (ISTAIIIP J/SISLADUL 1IN

ol - 0¢l SANTANDE SUIDURUL| WOL) AO[) L[SR,)

(81) = (81) SANIANIL FUNSIAUL WOL] MO ysE,)

(Z8) VN (0) VN (T8) VN SOIARIE SunrIado Wl Moy yse,)
£707 yT0tT £70T 44114

€207 ‘1€ YMEIN
Papu 1834 1) 10y

PT0T 1€ YIe W
Papua aeak 3yj 10,

‘L€ Y2HMEN papud
Jeak ayy 40

‘1€ yaaey popud
AT I} a0y

‘1f 4daEy papud
A8ak ayy a0y

‘1€ yasey papud
183K ) Jo g

18301,

(ONOM ONOH) TOLAV

1444V

110, (ONOM DNOH) Td L4V 1ddD4V MO|} YSEd pasLIizwuIng

(L01) s 8 = (ce1) = 1S312IUT AUT[ONUOI-UON 01 PNLIO[|R (SSO]) N1[OI]

(LLD) = 07 - (8627) - {sso)/awodul sasuayaadaod [€Jo L

0 \] t (SSO])/0WOIUT AISULYITWOD 1OYI()

(8LT) 0¢ (8627) TUAA A JO] (SSOPAIJ0]

TLL VN 0C VN SL VN RUIREEN|
€207 24114 €207 44114

sso| pue )ijead Jo Juawdjes prspewng

‘L€ YR b SY

P70 ‘1€ YMEA 1B SV

‘1€ BN JR SY

“I€ Y2IB I 4E S

‘1€ YIBA B SY

L€ YMEA JE SY

€301

(ONOM ONOH) TOLAV

TddIAV

(€01) 1 t01) 15300341 BU1]]0)U03-U0U PI)ENILNIIY
(750 £ 1414 SJASSE JON
1454 < 1274 SIISST JULLITII-UOU JIN
VLS yLS SANTIQRI] TUDLIND-UON
RCR = 3C8 SIASST JUDLIND-UON
C ¥ - $)ISSL JUILIND JON
OLY oy oty SA[IQRI WAL )
I8¢ VN 4% VN Ott VN SIDSNE JUALIN )
£70T £T0T ¥707 £207 | 24174

123Ys dduT[Rq PIsLIEWIWNG

Jo aep ay

1uontod [N o1 Juiaiead ssop ay ) cajqeandde aq 10U pjnom Mou SIYEAAPUN HTOT YMICIA |y PAPUS 1nak Yy a0)

‘suoljeiado panunuoasip o) sut

NSO[ISIP "AdUAJ| (O [ 2 JO UONTIAPISUOD B 10) Ik a) FULINp i D1V W [ON 2w ayy paimbae sey Aueduio ) 1

(¢) 2 stuonisinbae
141

1ad ST aWes L) 87 PASOIISIP IOU ST((1) 2 €TOT 1€ Y2IRN) (1) 210 )T ser)y pue 10y snbay o) Sutureiad

1821911 FU1JORUOD UOU Ay | “suoneuiwid Auedwoa-1aiun 10jaq e AIRIPISGNS Yo J0) PASOISIP wunowe ay | dnoary Y1 01 [RHARW aIe 1Y) $IS2NUT FUJONUCI-UOU SBY 18y AIRIPISQNS YL JO UORRUWLIOIUL [RIIUEUL PAZLITWWNS SI AO[q N0 128

(1DN) s1s340ul Buifjo.uod-uoyN (q)

09L920I1.Jd00OTVYATOLORN = NID

Q‘b::.q ASINAAYIO SSOJUN "DIDP 24DYS JAAOXD SUONIIN YN 000 SO 1)

SIUILIIEIS [RIAUBUIJ PAJEPI[OSUOD 0] SIJON
paug aeaLlg snbay




2] S08 6L6 344 91¢ SIOSST 1N,

= 66 19 £0T Ll SII[IQEI] JUDLIND UOU [B)0 |,
. 9 8 bt [43 SANMIQRI 1Y)
= t6 €S 691 ovl (sajquded apen Suipnoxa) sanijqer [eueul |
66 19 £0T [44} SIHIQ eI JUALIND-TOU [¥)0 ],
6 L8T (X4 96 €€l SO UL [V |
0 il 9 6 6l SRR MO
L 0ci LEl 19 £8 (sopquAed opeay Suipnjaxa) sanriqely el
< esl 06 9¢ It sajqesvd api |
SALIQUI] JUILIN)
S 0€8 96L 69¢ 9t $)ISST JUILIND-UOU [R)0 |,
0 19¢ LLY £L1 LST S)OSSE JHAAIND [0 ]
* £8C 933 24 vl (SO UANUT RUIPA SRS I]I()
0 0 0 0 = STDEST |RIDURUL A1)
- s 101 101 8¢l $A1qEALIDAT AP |
0 LT |84 6¢ St Siud[RAIND ysed pur yse,y
VN SIASSE JULINY)

£L0T T LE UMEIN PTOT 1€ UMHEBIA €ZO0T 1Y WIBIA | $TOT 1€ UIEBIA [ €TOT 1€ WDITBIAL | $TOT 1€ UMEIN

TdIAY avnos 14V IDAYS IDUE|R( pAsIEIWNG

“saamjuaA 1ol JUBAD]L AU JO STUAWITS [BIURUL A1 UL PAILasaid JUNOWIE U1 $193[J21 PISO[ISIP UONBWIOJUT A |, dNOIn) A1 O] [ELITW 1B 1EY) SAMUIA JUIOF 3S0U) IO} UONTLIOJUL [BOURIL| PAZIIEUWMS sapraotd mojag ajqe Ay |

$2.INJUIA JuI0l PUE SI)JBIDOSSE JO UOLIBLLLIOUY [RIDUBULY PI7LIRWILNG (111

- VN |I 4 6C 11T "SIBIDOSSY PUR SAT O SIUILUIILLILLO,)
€T0T IE YHBIW $20T "1t YHEN E€Z0T 1€ YMEIA | PTOTIE USIEIA | €T0T 1€ UXIBIN | $T0T "1 € WIEIN
1d3dV avnos 1dV sag|nantg

$2ANJUIA JUI0] pUE SALIIOSSE J0 123dS2I UL SIPIIGE PUE SHUILUWO]) (1
“K[dde 10u 0p $707 YDIBIA [ € PIPUA JBAL ALY) JO] SNSOISIP Y] *ODUAL "IIBIOOSSE UR SBA A11U Y1 *¢Z0T YMBA 1€ 18 SV "dnosny oy Jo AIRIPISQNS paumo A[[oYm & SL (YY) PRI 1BAL ] UOISTIXY sefey] snbay “pzO7 YIB | € 1B SV

“alqe[reAr a1e $aaud pajonb ou "aduay puE PAISIUN AL SINNUD PIUOIIUIU JAOQE Y [|V

SLS 79 ITETON
[ 8L1 poyaw Alnbz AIMUAA IO %08 eipy| [TV PO O1RALL] BIPU SHISSIA0L] ddndsoiay
9ty 444 poajy Linby AIMUAIA IIOT 9406 eipu| (QVNOS) PAMNWIT JNBALL RIpU| SULBIO] (VNS
£T0T1E WIEW PTOT "1t YHEW poyjoul [EEXETT

Junowe SuIALIE) Aununoady diysuone(dy | diysiaumo jo o, |ssauisnq jo dde[d A)ud ay) jo dwey

“p1ay s1ySu Sunoa jo vonaodord agy se awes ayy st sisaiaun diysiaumo jo uontoedord gy pue “ssaursng jo adeyd jeduey

nayy osje §1 uonensial 1o uonelodioaur jo Knunod ay | -dnoiry ayy £q Apdsaup
P13y ate yargam saieys £1inba o) Kjjos Supsisuoa [eded aleys ABY MO PASI SANNUI 3y | dNoIry ay) 01 [RLUAEW 1RSI0 Y1 o uotuido ul yaIgm pzOZ TIE YR 1B s dnoan oy jo samuaa TWIOL dUY) PUB SIIBINOSSE Y AR MO[AQ 110 1S

$24NJUIA Jutol pue dIEId0SSE Ul S)SAINUY ()

[PAIDIS ASINADYIO SSOJUIT DIDP 210 IIAND SHOTFIPY YN ] UE 000 Siiiaitin |1y}
SJUIWIIEYS [EIIUBUI PAJEPI[OSUND 0] SD)ON
09L9Z00.LJ000TVATOCO8N - NID pajywi Nealg snbhay




s1suq palediun U2aq SeYy JUANSIAUL Ay JO anfea FulALed ay | "pjos toaq os[e sey Fuipjoy Suluiewal oy -pud 1eak ay 03 wanhasqns “Ajeuonippy ‘uonepuno,] snbay jo sa.

(YUDIq o] AJppuopts L s 220ds S1f | )

PTOT 1L YDIRIA 1B SE ANJBA JASSE DU S)

s K1nba gog plos Auedwo ) Juate Ay FZ0g YMRA [€ papua aeak oy Sunng]

S2)BID0SSE |EIIaJEWIWI AJJENPIAIPUL WO} JWI0dUT dAISHAIdW0d (8303 Jo ateys s, dnoin

DWODLT AISUAYAIAWO 1ay1()
suoneiado Furnunuod wol) (SSo)ALoI|
:§0 daeys s,dnoan ay) jo spunowe yedardiy

SN[AINs pue S0AI08Y|

tduwo aaeys Kyinb:
pul jo junowe ULy MeAdIssy

$3)RIJOSSE [BLIdJEWIUIL A[|ENp

€207 "1t PIEI PT07 T8 DI

‘poyaur £11nba Ay FUISH 10] POIUNOIIL S 1LY MTIDOSST [TLIMN LWL K][ROPIAIPUL UE UL S1S2INUI PRy 0s[e dNoir) ay) "aA0qe paso|dsIp sa)

OSSE UL S1SAI UL aLy 03 uonippe

SIRIDOSSE [EBLIJuWIUl L[[RNPIAIPU] (AT

(©) [(3) 8t 81 $9 (550])/t0oU1 dAISUAOAAUGY [BJ0
- (0) (1) | 0 {(SS0])/9W0dUT AASUAGAIAWO 1I()
(£) (ptE) 6¢ Ll 59 TEIA 9] 20 (SO0
- - - (n (Le) asuadxa xut auoau|
(1) (62) (]D) (82) (o) (SWoAUT)AS0d ddURUL |
- (9¢) (£€) (Ts) (£S) uonesIIowe pue toneaidag
(@) (09%) (L0S) (€1¢) (08¢) sasuadyxa Funeiadq)
(0) LT 8 12 RC AQUODUL Y1)/ LUODUL S|
g VN 1234 619 [ 816 dNUANY
£C0TTIE YEW PT0T "1€ YMEN €707 "1€ YR | pZOT "1E UMCIN | €707 1€ UMEIA | $TOT "1E YIMBIN
Papud 163X 2y} 104 POpUD 1834 oY) 104 PIpuUD 183A 9y} 104
Tdauv avios Tav

§§0] pun _E:.n-w J0 U TS paspigiinyg

09L9T00.Ld000TVATOL08N - NID

(PAIDIS ASTNINIO SSOUN DIDP AABYS JAIIND “SUONIY YN] U] 10 SHnown |}
SIUILIIR)S [RIDUBLL| PAIRPIJOSTOD 0] SIJON
pajwIg Mealag snbay




z:..:__.:_.:_:.u_.z_:_._ S
SLT (59) 6¢8 2691 (986'%) (zzg'y) Ipy UONEPIOSUOD pue Auedwodiour Jo 1331 A 1 /ppv
wo |- %o |- wo |- wo |- %o |- uo |- uot{epiy | snbay
(popaw Lunba arp aad se m_=25mo>....3....r. /...H_“ﬁa
%yl | %0 0 %0 £l %I 23 %61- | otl %S 8LI %C (IdV) PRI MVALL BIPUL TSN 2 _.qﬁr.ﬁw}..
%Ll- | %0 a) %! (12) %t 6l %01- | 9t¥ %91 1244 %S (AVNOS) PANWITT NBAL RIPUL SUIRLO| T HER]
ueipuj
(poyyaw Kynba oy 1od se judwysoan]) SaARJUI A JUIH[
o\aO - %0 - %0 - a\cO - %0 | o\aO - %0 Av__: —,.3__.:__ \Aﬁ:g.n_ﬁ:O,u \AMO_O:F_UQ,_ RRAICE] .AST_J/\
%0 = %0 - %0 = %0 - %0 0 %0 - o\:O A—a._—u:_v paytuig DMTATLL \AwC_O::uu L A2I10;] z:_qv/\
%0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 |(#01) % | %0 (TddLDAV) PIT 1A $INPOI IDUINSUO ) 310, sibay
%0 14 %8 |(1) %C 0 %0 (N %0 |(o1) %0 I %0 (DTTHOV) T sen pur ji() snbay
SISHINU] AJLIOUTAS
[4 %0 |(0) %0 |1 %I1- |0 %0 | ¢ %0 |(0) %0 |1 %0 || %0 | TdHILV ponwir| kAl Fuoysuof] sho | snbhay
1T %z |(0) %0 |0 %0 |0 %l- |1t % [(0) %0 | € %0 |1 %0 | 1)LV OUD paruy Ausdwo,y A5ojouyaa ) anto;] snhay;
9 %l- | %0 € %S |(9) %t 8 %= |(S) %< (14 %l | %0 na ins sautoAld ¢ dwet) n 18
wn %t T %0 (Te) %3S 129 %LE1- |(08S) % vs %0t~ [(9th) %91- I %0 deLag] (ARUIag) SV§ AruIag]
- %0 |- %0 |- %0 |- %0 | %0 |- %0 |- %0 |- %0 dauel.] a101) Medsoiay snboy
- %0 - %0 b %0 - %0 # u\cO - %0 = %0 = %0 aduel,] .\A:wz_;\ .J,J:n_ms_v< .A:_JU/\
(9) %! 0 %0 (z6) %S91 [(91) %1v  [(06) %8 on %06 (zol) %t [(¢11) %I~ | TIDOV (YTIOOV) YT sv0 pue 10 snbay
19 %L [23 %eT- |(8) %vl | %C £€C % 143 %o6i- | 0Tt %T1 09¢ %o NVV (AVV) U] 2Uae g ouay snbay
(Ls) %S (z9) %by  |(18) %Sl |(11) %8C  |(8¢1) %l |(€0) %0 |(9LE'1) %18~ |(6pr D) %81 AHV GIIV) SV "aaurt f sguipof | snbay
- %0 - %0 - %0 - %0 - %0 - %0 - %0 - %0 Uk [ uosuesagl ardsouay snhay
£ %0 Sl (VAD] %0¢ (€ %8 (2} %l | %1~ CL8 Sett 688 %Il RARNAY . (TIVV) DT 2edsey snbay
(z8) %8 %Ll |(€L) %0¢€1 |0l %ST  |(ss1) nel |z %99 9 %0 [(vO1D) %I~ ALVV (ASIVV) Al daudsoidy sihay
(T6) %8 %67 [(0p) %L 8l %St~ |(€€D) %T1 6S %ee- (107 %S 1~ |(b6) %1~ |dioa vy UTL'SVS Uk ddvdsalay snbay
SaLARIPISUNS U110,
() %1 * %0 (0 %l (7} %0 1dRIV CTdiRIV) P djeatig uosnx | sefinyg snbay
() %0 |- %0 I %0 5 %0 (1) %0 | %0 (D) %0 |- %0 TINWY | CTAAIAY) PAONWIET MRALI| JUILDFTUR Y [eLRy shbay
[4 %0 £l %06L- | ££°0 %1- 0 %0 C %0 el %479~ | ell %t 6<¢ %¢ NA% CTdIVY) PONWE RAL] BIPUL SIQUIDSSY SATMNONNSOLY
(¥) %0 (2) %I “ %0 . %0 (¥} %0 (T) %I LY %I St %0 HEARD | CLdOL L) P avallg (), sufooy sho | jeddoy
(63) %S (o 1) %r0l | %0 (0) %0 (6S) %S (et1) %8 L1z %8 6Ct %P TAALY | CIIDWL) panwirp mueatig 10, Sulpnojy sfo eddoy
(w11 %01 |(96¢) %LLT | %0 I %z |(pi1) %01 |(96¢) %LI1T | 98¢ %IT | 8YL %06 1V (1d.1.v) panwi] awaud s£o | snbay
an %l (2] %t - %0 I %0 an %l (¥) %t LY %1 o %0 TdVHYV (TdVITY) ponr | deany sasuriddy awopi snbay
(Len) %91 [(092) %781 |(+8°0) %l (1) %l (8L1) %St |(197) St 09¢ %01 LLS'L ST Tddov CTdd V) PANWIT MNCALL] $1INPOL] Lowmsuo,) snbay
(861) %81 |(L6) %89  [(00'1) %< [ %I1- [(Lel) %L1 |(96) %S 88C %l 96T %¥ Tddi v (T3 TV) PANWIT NEALI SINSTY PAIUIEU: snbay
T %0 I %0 |- %W %0 I %0 | %0 0 %0 | %0 TV (vipup) paywip MeaLlg A3ojouyda] asto,] snhay
(6627} %LT  [(2ST) %LLI 0¢'0 Y%l- 0 %0 |(667) %97 |(zST) %8¢l | 85S¢ %t 91t %S 1ddodv (TddDAV) PIT 1A $1I0POIJ IAUNSUO, ) 3010, sihay
(9) Y%l (€5) %EC |- %0 I %0 [(9) %l (€¢) %81 (0L) %e- | %0 TNV [1dvvIpanury et s8uiprory sutmaginuey andsoiay
(191) %S 1 s %S59¢- | & %06~ (1) %T (os1) %l 1zs %98¢- | ¢SS %8S 01t %9C TdINSY PN AMRATL RIPUT BULINIIENURIY SAUNDNISOI0Y
SALIIPISNRS uCipu|
(9tv) %0y }(ToE' ) %l16 |1 % (@ %S (s5¥) %8¢ |(v0¢'T) %SIL | vI6Y %P8 | £6L°6 %0T1 [dV paiw | ALl snbay,
Suedwo) yuaied
(S60'1) %001 |(c¥1) %001 {(95) %001 |(0F) %001 |(1S1°1) %001 [(Z81) %001 £L9'C %001 SG1'8 %001 josuo )y paepljosuo’y
wnowy | o, sy [wnowy [ 9psy  [wunowy | 9gsy | wunowy | 9psy | unowy | o8y [ unowy %,
(ssop) - (sso]) (ssof) - (ssop) | (100) | -(100) | (1D0) (100) @ (1oL | (100 [sv C1o1)] wnowy [ o5 sy | unowry | 94 sy
Jwoad | ywjoud | /iyosd | /iyjoad /100 /100 /100 /100 | DL/DL 100 IOAR DL $1958Y SIAFSY | S19S8Y $1988Y
ut a1eyg | ur areyg | ur a1eys | ur ateys | wl daeyS | ul aieyg | ur aieyg | ur areyg | ut aieyg | Ul a1eyg | Ul aseyg | ut areys 1aN 19N 19N 19N
€707 ‘1€ Y2IB F20T ‘1€ Y21 €207 L€ YMEBW $T0T 1€ WIBN €TOT "I € UIB N PTOT ‘1€ YMEW £20T 70c
PIPUD 4BIA dy) day [ papud 1edL ay) 20, |papud aeak ay) 104 [papud JeaK YY) J0f | pOPUB ABIL dY) 10, [ pOpUI HBIL YL H0,[ | ‘¢ YIIBIA I SY | ‘L€ YT Je sy

ANPAIN A PTG RO G [Euonippy - of a0y,

0929T0).1d000TVACOLORN - N1

(POIIS OSINAINIO SKOJUN DIV AADS 1IN0 SUOHHA YNT 1T

A4 SJUNOU J117)
SJUIWIIIL)S [BIdUBUI] PMEPIIOSUND 0) SIHON]
paywig aearrd snhay



Aequs Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions. except share data, unless otherwise stated)

Note 46 - Discontinued operations

(a) Description

On March 31. 2021, the Group announced its intention to liquidate its subsidiary Aequs Oil and Gas LLC (AOGLLC), USA. The associated loss on business are therefore
shown separately as discontinuing operations in statement of profit and loss and assets and liabilities are presented as held for sale in financial statements for the years
ended March 2022 and March 2021.

The Group announced its intention to liquidate its step-down subsidiaries Aequs Toys Hongkong Private Limited (ATHPL), Hongkong and Aequs Force Technology
Company Limited (AFTCL), Hongkong, The associated loss on business are therefore shown separately as discontinuing operations in statement of profit and loss and
assets and liabilities are presented as held for sale in financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2024.

(b) Financial performance and cash flow information

The financial performance and cash flow information of discontinuing operations presenied as fotlows:

For the year ended March 31,2024 For the year ended March 31,2023
AOGLLC | ATHPL | AFTCL Total AOGLLC KTTPL AFTPL (INDIA)

Revenue - 19 - 19 - -
Other income - 0 - - - 0 -
Expenses (0) 40 - (40) 2) (6) -
Profit/(Loss) hefore Income tax during the vear 0) (21) - 2n (2) (6) =
Income tax expense - - - - - - -
Profit/(Loss) after Income tax during the vear 0 (21) - (21) (2) (6) -
Cash lows

Net Cash Inflow/(Qutflow) from Operating Activities 0 0 | | (2) (2) -
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities = - = - (28) -
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities (0) - - (0) 0 9 -
Net increase in cash generated from discontinued operation [(1)] 0 1 1 (2) 21) -
(C) Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

AOGLLC | ATHPL | AFTCL Total AOGLLC KTTPL AFTPL (INDIA)

Assets classified as Held for Sale:

Property. Plant and Equipment - - - - - 29 -
Trade receivables - - - - - - -
Inventories - . - - - - -
Other current assets | 1 2 4 | 20 -
| Total assets of disposal group held for sale 1 1 2 4 1 49 -
Liabilities directly associated with Assets classified as held for sale:

Borrowings (0) . - (0) [(0)] 9) -
Trade Payables - (0) - (0) - -
Other current liabilities 0 - - 0 0 -
Total liabilities of disposal group held for sale 0 - - (0) 0 -
Net Assets 1 1 2 4 1 -

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Aequs Private Limited CIN : US0302KA2000PTC026760

Notes to consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR Millions, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

Note 47 - Additional regulatory information required by Schedule Il
(i) Details of benami property held: No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Group for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.
(ii) Wilful defaulter: The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
(iii) Relationship with struck off companies: The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act. 1956
(iv) Compliance with number of fayers of companies: The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013.
(v) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements: The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financial year. (Refer note 50 for further details).
(vi)(a) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested the funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(if) provide any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi)(b) The Group has not receive any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) of the company shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961. that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

(viii) The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year

(ix) The Group has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the current or previous year.

(x) The Group does not own any immovable properties in India.

(xi) There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period

(xii) The borrowings obtained by the Group from bank have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken.

(xiii) The Group was not required to recognise any provision as at March 31, 2024 under the applicable law or accounting standards. as it does not have any material foresecable
losses on long-term contracts. The Group did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024.

(xiv) The Group has one Core Investment Group (CIC) as part of the Group. viz.. Aerospace Manufacturing Holdings Private Limited. India which is not required to be registered
with the Reserve Bank of India.

Note 48 - Subsequent events

1. a) The Parent Company. vide its board resolution dated 24 June 2024. has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of certain wholly owned subsidiaries i.e, AeroStructures
Manufacturing India Private Limited. Aequs Engineered Plastics Private Limited. Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited and Aequs Toys Private Limited with itself.
As of the date of adoption of these financial statements, the Scheme and the related petition are yet to be filed with requisite authorities. and necessary approvals are still pending.

Upon receiving the requisite approvals and completing all formatities associated with the merger. the Parent Company will account for the lransaction in accordance with the
applicable accounting principles prescribed under Appendix C of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103. ‘Business Combinations’ notified under Section 133 of the Act
and/ or any other applicable Ind AS, as amended from time to time as this will be a transaction between entities under common conirol. Following the merger. these companies
will be subsumed into the Parent Company and will cease to exist as separate legal entilies

This merger will not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group

2. The Company has approved a slump sale of its business of contract manufacturing of kitchen and home appliances to a newly formed Company namely ~Aequs Cookware
Private Limited” vide an agreement dated July 11. 2024. As on the date of the financial statements. the transactions has not yet been consummated.

3. In April 2024, Aequs Material Management Private Limited (AMMPL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company. filed for closure effective March 30. 2024. The
entity stands dissolved with effect from June 29. 2024.

Note 49 - The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on October 04. 2024.

For BSR& CoLLP For and on behalf of thg Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Sampad Guhd Tha
Partner
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Place: Chennai
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Director
DIN-00477195
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Place: Belagavi
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